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Excellence
at UniCredit

UniCredit is a pan-European Bank with

a unique service offering in Italy, Germany,
Austria, and Central and Eastern Europe.
Our Purpose is to Empower Communities
to Progress, delivering the best-in-class
solutions and services for all stakeholders,
unlocking the potential for our clients

and our people across Europe.

@ For additional information visit our Reporting microsite
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Delivering Excellence

We believe that by delivering the very best for
our stakeholders, we are unlocking the potential
that exists across Europe, for our clients, our
people and our communities. We are setting

a new benchmark for banking through
our three strategic focus areas:

Simplification
and streamlining
38/

Leveraging
common strenc

46
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UniCredit at a glance

UniCredit: a pan-European network empowering
thirteen banks, leverading Group synergies

Confirming our value proposition

UniCredit is well-rooted in local communities and has a
leadership position in the Countries and Regions where
we have a presence, especially in terms of profitability
and efficiency. Local banks manage their day-to-day
operations, cascade and execute the Group Strategy.
The Group sets the overarching direction and
harmonises scalable activities, bringing

everything under a common denominator.

Offering our clients a gateway to Europe

Our core operations are located in Italy, Germany, Austria

and Central and Eastern European Countries, all served
by three high-quality product factories: Corporate,
Individual and Group Payment Solutions. Our approach
allows us to be as close as possible to our clients while
also using the scale of the entire Group for developing
and delivering the best products across our markets.

Placing clients at the centre

We provide top-tier products and solutions, strategic
advice and innovation to over one million SMEs and
corporates, as well as 14 million affluent, private
and other retail clients.

Our best in class in-house solutions, complemented
with the top industry expertise of our partners, and
powered by reliable digital and data capabilities,
create significant value for our clients, firmly
positioned at the centre of all we do.

13 >/5,000

Leading banks

4 3

Coveragde Regions

15m

Clients worldwide

Talented colleagues?

Product factories

1,000+

Employee Networks active members?

In Germany

#2

In Austria

#1

In CEE?

Italy - Quality earnings powerhouse
Consistently delivering high profitability and growth

Germany — Resilient anchor
High-quality growth and best year ever as a result
of successful transformation

Ranking based on Net Profit FY2024 for Italy and Germany and 9M24 for
CE&EE, as per FY2024 results market presentation methodology. Austria
based on total assets at bank level as per last available disclosure.

1. Central Eastern Europe (CEE) includes the Czech Republic, Hungary,
Slovakia, Slovenia, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Bulgaria, Croatia,
Romania and Serbia.

2. Headcount as at 31 December 2024.

3. Diversity traits represented: LGBTQIA+, Gender, STEM,

Disability, Cultural Diversity, Generations, Caregiving

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts



Group scale,
local reach

Empowered banks unified as
one Group, in the continuous
pursuit of excellence

Austria - Resilient anchor

Operational and capital excellence champion,
delivering best results ever, moving forward
with transformation

CEE - Growth Engine

Leading franchise in the region consistently
delivering excellent performance and
growth in individual markets

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

Nurturing our diverse talent base

UniCredit recognises that it is essential that we unlock
the potential of our over 75,000 people, businesses, and
communities across Europe. We have long recognised
that an equitable, inclusive and diverse workforce is
vital to our business and creates a more fair, inclusive
and positive working environment. We believe that
when Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DE&I) work

in harmony, great things happen.

International mindset

International presence in BoD (%)

International presence in Group Executive Committee (%)

1loday Auedwo)

Female representation
BoD (%)

JEmTy

Group Executive Committee (GEC) (%)

Leadership team (%)
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Business model

Our business model is centred on delivering sustainable growth,
built on strong foundations across 13 leading and empowered
banks with local coverage close to the clients, leveraging a
common denominator: the strength of three product factories
with an ecosystem of strategic partners, a centralised and efficient
Group Procurement, all continuously streamlined and simplified
through our Digital & Operations.

Corporate Solutions
Empowering corporates to progress

We have an extensive corporate client base and we provide them with
seamless access to value-added services through three product lines —
Advisory & Financing, Client Risk Management, Trade & Correspondent

Banking. Combining deep local expertise and a strong cross-border
presence, we support our clients with the broader array of products

and services that they require, facilitating their growth ambitions.

Enhancing our product
offering: three global
product factories

While clients access our services through
local banks, our comprehensive offering
to meet their needs is created by our
three global product factories —
Corporate, Individual and Payment
Solutions. Each of these factories
delivers best-in-class solutions,
developed internally or through our
dynamic ecosystem of trusted partners.

Payments Solutions

Every European client’s

first choice for payments

Our unigue pan-European footprint, cross-border positioning, payments
expertise and advanced data and technology support our Vision of
becoming the first choice for payments in Europe. In 2024 we formed a

multi-market partnership with Mastercard, while our new Group Payments

Solutions factory expanded our international offering and nearly doubled
the number of corporates accessing our digital portal since 2021.

4 Olptf@getelid 2 024 Annual Report and Accounts
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How we create value

e Read more on page 14
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2024 highlights

The strondest performance in our bank’s history

2024 record results crowning 16 consecutive quarters of quality profitable
growth. All our geodraphies and product factories demonstrated superior
execution and beat all the tardets set in 2021. This performance balances
excelling in the short-term and preparing for the future and is a testament
to the dependability of UniCredit and its people.

Financial highlights

OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY

3/9%

TOP-LINE GROWTH

e2 8or ¢15.40n

1.
2.

6

Gross Revenue
+4.3% FY/FY
+4.0% Net Revenue

CAPITAL EFFICIENCY

8./%

Net-revenue-to-RWA ratio
+0.8pp FY/FY

BEST-IN-CLASS
PROFITABILITY, RoTE

1/./7%

RoTE 20.9% based on 13% CET1r

Cost-to-income ratio
-1.8pp FY/FY
€9.4bn costs, -0.6% FY/FY

ASSET QUALITY

15bps

CoR
+2bps FY/FY

FY24 INCREASED
DISTRIBUTIONS?

=€9bn

>€26bn total distributions FY21-24

Before considering the impact of strategic investments.
Of the cash dividend (€3.73bn), €1.44bn already paid as interim. Of the SBB (€5.27bn), €1.7bn already completed, the balance to be completed
pending supervisory and shareholder approvals at AGM and expected to be commenced post completion of BPM offer.

3. Net Profit net of integration costs and RusChemAlliance (RCA) full coverage.

Gross Operating Profit
+7.5% FY/FY

ORGANIC CAPITAL GENERATION!

444bp5

€12.6bn

RECORD
BOTTOM LINE

€9.7bn

Stated Net Profit
+2.2% FY/FY
€9.3bn Net Profit
€10.3bn underlying?

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts
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Sustainability highlights

Thanks to our strong ESG foundations, in 2024 we continued to make progress on our ESG KPIs. =
H We advanced our sustainable 5
Environment Ve aovar . 11 :
financial instruments, reaching
Sustainable financial a total of €26.9 billion in cumulative Green Bonds issued
instruments and Net Zero green lending since January 2022. Q
commitments. g
eRead more on page 83 €6.5bn :
P Total amount of
financing from -
@ Green Bonds §
2
H Since 2022, we have provided 78 1 i
SOCIal €13.2 billion in social financing € LM
Social financing for initiatives via micro-credit, impact financing FY24 contribution e
in our communities. and lending to disadvantaged areas. to communities 3
e Read more on pade 84 g
15,000 :
Hours dedicated to
volunteering by o
@ our colleagues 3

CEO and top management remuneration
Governance saw a 20% weighting of long-term +l y 5 O O
ESG-aligned remuneration performance related to ESG business, Colleagues across the Group
and solid DE&I framework. DE&! priorities, and climate risk. part of Culture Network
Furthermore a relevant link to Group’s
@ Read more on page 85 Values and Culture - “Winnind. The Right
Way. Together” goal — is also part of the 3 6 5

short-term scorecard. Initiatives mapped

in the context of our
@ well-being framework

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts 7
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Dear Shareholders,

It is a pleasure to write to you as the Chairman of
the UniCredit Board.

In 2025, we look ahead to a horizon that promises
a great deal of change. At the same time, we are
still under the long shadow of the many changes
in the macroeconomic environment that have
rocked the world since we first put out our
strategic plan, UniCredit Unlocked, into action.

Global growth has been stifled by multiple wars
compounding an already fraught macroeconomic
environment post-pandemic. Globalisation is
fracturing increasingly under this pressure.

While there is optimism among the investor
community about America’s economy, recent
political developments and their implications

oo g K
n .r.- ol 3
j A s

~ for how we address macro issues like climate change

contribute to the pervasive feeling of uncertainty.

In short, the clouds over Europe and the world have not
cleared, and we are not sure when they will. Dynamism,
innovation, and resilience are not only key to businesses
enduring in these circumstances, they are also essential
for continuing to support the communities that rely on
these businesses.

UniCredit continues to prove itself as an exemplary
European business; the type our continent needs,
according to Mario Draghi and Enrico Letta’s reports
on the state of European competitiveness and the
Single Market. UniCredit is a dynamic business
embracing innovation and keeping clients at the
centre of everything we do, unlocking value while
ensuring that our communities are supported.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts



UniCredit continues to prove itself as
an exemplary European business;
the type our continent needs.”

We have a proven model for resilience and delivery
under macroeconomic pressure, as is clear from our
results of the last four years. After 16 consecutive
guarters of quality growth, we are preparing to move
into a new era where we use this momentum to achieve
even greater success for the clients and communities
we serve.

The businesses we support are key to the prosperity
of our communities, because they contribute to the

competitiveness of those communities and our bloc
as a whole.

By deepening the markets we serve in Europe, while
also leveraging on the creation of continental banks,

we — as a banking group — can play an all-important role
as the driving force of our continent’s competitiveness,
serving companies to the best of our ability and
efficiently serving retails, so they can channel

their savings into the economy.

We have the leverage in our pan-European banking
network, the Strategy, the energy, and the ambition, to
help our continent steer a course out of these years of
stagnation and stalling and into a new era of prosperity.
We can help our bloc become a true rival to the likes

of the US.

Our strong position is supported by our adoption of a
new governance system. Operating under the mandate
of a new Board of Directors, we will continuously
improve our processes in the same spirit of always
striving to do better and deliver our best that has
defined UniCredit’s industrial Strategy since the

launch of our transformation.

Under the leadership of our CEQ, Andrea Orcel, who

is working with the Board and our strong management
team to deliver this transformation successfully, we will
unlock new growth ordanically and, where they arise,
seize opportunities for inorganic growth that will
support our trajectory.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

We will build the strength of our international profile,
having already built ourselves a strong foundation with
two core markets in Italy and Germany, demonstrating
the value of our status as a pan-European bank.

Though the economic picture is not what we would
want it to be for Europe, we have built our resilience

as an institution to be able to navigate what comes
and, most importantly, remain firmly by our clients to
help them achieve success. In this sense, the prospects
for us are positive.

We are ready to take the necessary steps to strengthen
our position — through technological innovation, for
example — and deliver sustainable results, so the
clients and communities we serve can navigate

a course through these difficult times. Our service

to them remains at the centre of everything we do.

Our greatest asset in achieving this will be our people’s
continuous commitment to our strategic Vision, our
Purpose, and our Culture. It is their dedication that

has brought us this far, and this is reflected in our most
recent results. | wish to congratulate and thank all of
them for their hard work. Their continued dedication
will empower us to push the bar even further.

There are great things for us on the horizon,
if we seize this opportunity now.

Thank you,

Chairman UniCredit S.p.A.
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Letter from the Chi Officer
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When we launched UniCredit Unlocked we
were stepping into a new era for the Bank.
| believe that we are doing it adain and in

doing so we will improve even further.”

Dear Stakeholders,

Since launching UniCredit Unlocked in 2021, our
winning Strategy set to achieve our Vision — to be the
Bank for Europe’s Future — has also propelled us to
become one of Europe’s best performing banks and
one that sets ambitions and a path for others to follow.

UniCredit’s 2021-2024 transformation has been nothing
short of exceptional, achieved while also consistently
delivering outstanding financial results quarter after
guarter, setting a new benchmark for banking.

We unified, refocused, and galvanised all our people
around one single Vision, Strategy, and Culture.

We restored trust and empowerment in our 13 banks
and our people: all coming together as ONE Group.

We simplified and streamlined our organisation,
processes, and ways of working, transforming our
efficiency while also investing in our people, digital
and data, product factories, and distribution channels
to offer more to our clients.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

We have lived by our Values and focused on our
fundamental Purpose: to Empower Communities
to Progress.

We continued to honor our ESG commitments

with notable social investments, such as our €2.6 billion
“UniCredit for CEE” initiative and our new Edu-Fund
platform, supporting programmes addressing
educational deprivation in our communities.

Together, this has firmly set out our proven blueprint

for banking not only in terms of financial achievements
but also in terms of how we should support the
communities in which we operate and always attempt
doing what is right, driving necessary change. This is, we
hope, the ambition and path we have set for our sector.

Record-breaking results

Our 2024 results were the very best in UniCredit’s
long history. The most recent quarter marks our
16th consecutive quarter of profitable growth.

e4.2on  1/7%

Net Revenue RoTE
+4% FY/FY Target: 10%
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Letter from the Chief Executive Officer continued

51 3% >€200bn

Beginning 2021-2024 FY21-FY24
4x greater than Target: €16bn
our European peers

Our RoTE reached 17.7% notwithstanding the
substantial excess capital we still carry, and is best-in-
class when adjusted for such excess capital. Our stated

Net Profit reached €9.7 billion (€10.3 billion underlying).

Our ordanic capital generation of 444bps — equal to
€12.6 billion — has allowed us to accrue €9.0 billion
to be distributed, while maintaining a CET1 ratio of
€.15.9% with c£6.5 billion of excess capital vs our
CET1 ratio target.

Our Net Revenue reached €24.2 billion — up to 4% year
on year — further reinforcing the quality of our top line
as NIl profitability remained best-in-class and our fees,
driven by our rebuilt market-leading product factories,
reached a top tier 33% of total revenues.

Our operational and capital efficiency also improved
further with a CIR <38% and a Net Revenue/RWA
ratio of 8.7% respectively.

We continued to build our lines of defence to protect
and propel our future taking extraordinary charges
of €1.3 billion.

1. Considering core EU peers with market cap above €30 billion
as of 31/12/2024, i.e. BBVA, BNP, Crédit Adricole S.A.,
Deutsche Bank, ING, Intesa Sanpaolo, Santander.

| 12

£12.66n

In 2024

Over the last four years, we delivered Total Shareholder
Return of 513%, outperforming our European peers*
by four times, with total cumulative distributions of
over €26 billion, more than 1.5 times our market cap
at the beginning of the period. Our EPS and DPS
growth (CAGR) of 48% and 64% respectively speaks
for itself. We are the most shareholder-friendly

bank in Europe.

The last four years have laid a firm foundation for

our next phase of quality growth. We have prepared
ourselves to take the essential next step. We will
redouble our commitment to unlock more value from
our Bank and go beyond the benchmarks we have set.
In summary, we are now moving to the second phase
of UniCredit Unlocked: Acceleration.

It will be our attractive geographical presence, client
and business mix, protected by our unmatched lines
of defence and leveraged upon by our team that will
allow us to further positively differentiate ourselves
from our peers and set a seven-year track record of
superior performance through the cycle.

We are both excited about the opportunity we have
in front of us and confident we will achieve it.

S
UniCre gt
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Our approach is showing the need to reform our single
market so it functions as it should, empowering our
European communities instead of stifling them.

We are showing the leadership Europe needs on this
issue, to support our bloc’s structural growth and
bring an end to years of economic stagnation.

The power behind our model for banking is the
people of UniCredit, united as ONE by a Vision, a
Strategy, and a Culture we all believe in, who have
made it a success. | am both grateful for their efforts
and honored to lead them.

When we launched UniCredit Unlocked we were
stepping into a new era for the Bank. | believe that
we are doing it again and in doing so we will improve
even further. | believe that, together, we can Unlock
our Acceleration!

(

Yours,

Chief Executive Officer UniCredit S.p.A.

e o
L | ST ar
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Our investment case

A unique investment proposition

Delivering unrivalled shareholder value,

while laying future foundations

€3

Structural advantages

Attractive geographic mix
2024-2027 KPIs

® Share of 2024 Net Profit* @ Share of 2027 Net Profit*
33%
c35%

Quality client mix

15m

Clients across Europe
(+3.5m Alpha Bank)

60%

SMEs, Private
and Affluent,
% of Revenue?

Superior business mix

#1

NIl RoAC?

Towards
40%

Fee-to-revenue ratio

14

w
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Proven execution

Leading financial results

12/12 Leader

Financial targets In operating and
exceeded® capital efficiency
and profitability®

Marked transformation

Fully
redesigned

and streamlined
ordanisation

One

Vision, Strategy
and Culture

New sustainable run rate

Sx 3x

Net Profit RoOTE since 2021
since 2021’
Share of Net Profit computed as sum of Italy, Germany and Austria

and CEE (excl. Russia); excl GCC.
SMEs including Micro Business.
Peer group: BBVA, BNP Paribas, Commerzbank, Credit Adricole S.A.,
Deutsche Bank, ING, Intesa San Paolo, Santander, Société Générale.

. Fees including Net insurance results and excluding VVodeno and Aion.
. UniCredit Unlocked 2024 targets.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts



Stratedically fortified

Clear alpha initiatives

+€1.4bn ngh

Fees 2024-2027* Efficiency

Solid lines of defence

£]1./bn €3 6bn

Overlay Stock Integration costs,
FY21-FY24

Long-term approach

Growth ce2.5on

From several Incremental
stratedic investments IT investments,
(e.g. onemarkets, Vodeno) 2025-2027

6. #1 among peer dgroup FY24 Cost/Income, Net Revenue/RWA and
ROTE@13%.

7. FY24 vs FY21, Stated Net Profit.

8. Total distribution as announced FY24 on average market cap 2024
for peer group as per footnote 3.

9. Subject to inorganic opportunities and delivery of financial ambitions

10.vs target CET1r 12.5-13%.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

With structural advantagdes — such as the unique geographic footprint, high quality
client base and a superior business mix — we are uniquely positioned for success.
Our proven execution delivers leading financial results and a sustainable run rate:
we drive clear alpha initiatives, ensuring outstanding returns and future growth.
A unigue investment proposition, still accessible at an attractive valuation.

¢
Outstanding returns

Sustainable ordanic value generation

c10on  Strong

Net Profit target in 2027 EPS and DPS dgrowth

EPS DPS
o +48% +64,

K3

Top-tier distribution policy

#1 50%

Distribution Dividend payout Expected yearly
yield® as ratio from FY25 distributions®
of FY24 FY25-27

-FY24

Strategic flexibility

c£6.50n

Excess Capital®®

MRA

Executed only
if accretive

15
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United around
a clear Vision
The Bank
Powered by for Europe’s future
Culture, Principles
and Values

Integrity, Ownership, Caring

M3IN3Y |eIDUBUIY

e Read more on pade 18

M3IN3Y DS3

110day pa1epiosuo)

Inspired by a
shared Purpose

Empowering
Communities to Progress

e Read more on page 20
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Proud of the success
of our Strategy

Industrial Transformation,

Financial Progress Committed

© Read more on page 22 to Sustainability

Leading by example,
supporting client transition,
championing social impact

e Read more on page 66




Our Purpose-Lled strategic framework continued

@ Our Culture, Principles and Values

Our Group has created a new benchmark for banking,
keeping our clients at the centre and unlocking
the potential of our people

Our Culture is key to our success in unifying and inspiring  Collectively, we are building the Bank for Europe’s
our people, driving them to work as a team and achieve  future, as one team of people acting as true partners

excellence in the right way. Our Culture network is to our clients. A better bank, creating better outcomes:
fuelled by passion and enthusiasm, spreading positive strongly grounded in the right Principles and Values;
cultural change throughout UniCredit. and delivering sustainable, quality growth and value.
Integrity Ownership Caring
> We act in the best > We deliver on our > We care about our
interest of our customers promises and take customers, communities
> \We are honest, accountability for our and each other
straightforward, actions and commitments > We are eager to help
and transparent > \We are empowered to one another and for
> We do the right thing — make decisions and learn our people to thrive
even when no one from failure. We speak > We treat each other
is watching. up — to express an idea, with respect and value
an opinion, or when we our differences.

see something wrondg.

& e O

Our Values are the foundation of our identity — In 2024, we updated our Employer Value
what we pass down to our people and what Proposition to help our team bring our

our people share and enact through their actions. Values to life and ensure everyone at UniCredit
They are at the heart of our decision-making, is motivated to actively contribute to Unlocking
ensuring we deliver for our clients honestly, a Better Tomorrow. Through a single voice, we
straightforwardly and transparently. We're are building a common narrative across the

committed to helping our customers, communities  Group and increasing the awareness and
and each other by treating everyone with respect attractiveness of our employer brand.
and valuing our differences.

\. J
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New EVP: R
Unlock a Better Tomorrow

In March 2024, we launched a new Employer Value
Proposition (EVP) — Unlock a Better Tomorrow —
to fit our Strategy and Purpose.

We want our existing and future employees to unlock
their fullest potential at UniCredit — attracting and
retaining individuals who embaody our Values of
Integrity, Ownership and Caring.

Our ambitions and commitments include
guaranteeing equal opportunities for all colleagues,
supporting our people’s personal growth and well-
being, nurturing a positive and inclusive working
environment, and leveraging our unique international
footprint. By encouraging and inspiring everyone at
UniCredit, we will drive innovation and create better
solutions for all our clients, helping us to achieve
business success.

Our EVP is built on four pillars:

> Accelerators of ambition — we are focused on
keeping our clients at the centre and unlocking
the potential of our people as individuals and
as professionals. We are a better bank, delivering
better outcomes for our stakeholders. Collectively,
we are building the bank for Europe’s future.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

> Champions of diversity — we are fostering an
inclusive environment that has no ceiling, with
no limit to how high and far our team can go.
As a Group, we provide a diverse and dynamic
international experience that only a pan-European
bank such as UniCredit has to offer.

Challenge seekers and changemakers —in

our team we have talented, dedicated and open-
minded individuals who challenge the status
quo. They deliver digital innovation that inspires;
they push boundaries and strive to set a new
benchmark for banking. There is no telling

what we might do next.

Drivers of sustainable chande - Sustainability
is in our DNA. We are rebuilding our communities
and economies for the better and keeping ESG at
the forefront of everything we do. We care about
creating a cleaner, greener future for our people,
our communities and Europe’s next generation.

To recognise and celebrate the contributions and
achievements of our people as champions of our EVP,
we've launched the UniCredit Storytellers initiative.
This advocacy programme features our colleagues

as the voice of our Bank, showcasing their UniCredit
journeys and giving a glimpse into life at UniCredit.
Browse the stories here to find out more.

@ For additional information visit Careers — UniCredit
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Our Purpose-Lled strategic framework continued

@ Our Purpose

Empowering Communities to Progress while ensuring
long-term, sustainable growth and delivering value
to all our stakeholders

By operating with the right Principles and Purpose, We actively communicate and engage with national,
we have the power to do tremendous good — for our European and international regulators to improve the
clients and communities, our people, our shareholders EU sustainable finance framework and facilitate

and investors. the transition to a low-carbon economy.

As the foundation of a principle-driven organisation, Offering our contributions to discussions held by

we actively engage with and extensively listen EU institutions and actively participating to the

to all our stakeholders equally. development of a sustainable financial framework

is central to developing a sustainable economic

UniCredit is committed to maintaining high
framework for all our stakeholders.

standards of integrity, transparency, professionalism
and co-operation in managing our relations with
regulators — EU authorities — and in performing
advocacy activities.

20 UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts



Our stakeholders

@ Our clients

Our clients are at the heart of everything we do. We build everything around
their needs, providing choice and discretion through best-in class products
and innovative solutions.

Our teams deliver exceptional service and personalised support, building
strong relationships and consistently exceeding expectations. Through
our service model, we leverage a range of distribution channels — physical
and remote branches, call-centres, internet and mobile — accessible to our
clients any time, anywhere.

@ Our people

Our people are our greatest asset. We actively listen to them and are
committed to fostering an environment where they feel valued, trusted,
empowered and accountable, so they can focus on value-added, client-facing
activities and achieve excellence.

With our common Vision and a clear Culture, our teams are unified and
inspired to drive our business forward, aligning individual aspirations with
ordanisational goals. We invest in professional growth through training,
and a clear career path that recognises and rewards performance.

With a shared belief in our Mission, we take pride in who we are
and in the collective impact we can make.

@ Our shareholders

As a unique pan-European champion, we leverage Group synergies to provide
superior capital generation and distributions. Our UniCredit Unlocked Strategy
has been consistently delivering unmatched value while protecting assets
and investing to secure sustainable, quality growth and remuneration.

We maintain open and transparent communication with our investors
through reqular updates, financial disclosures and proactive endagement.
Through annual general meetings, investor calls and roadshows, we
provide platforms for dialogue, addressing queries and fostering

mutual understanding.

We also actively engage with investors on ESG topics, highlighting
our sustainable initiatives and aligning our practices with investor
interests in responsible growth.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

>12k

Front-line hires since 2021, Group-wide

c.85%

Branches refurbished in Italy

20

Net promoter score,
+4 increase vs. 2023

20k

People involved in Culture Day in 2024,
including CEO and Top management

¢33

Hours of training courses
per employee per annum

1%

Gender pay gap on comparable roles,
from c.4%; €100m pledded to further
reduce our GPG

308

Institutions met during 2024

€9bn

2024 distributions

>€26bn

2021-2024 cumulative distributions

21
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Our Purpose-Lled strategic framework continued

@ Our Stratedy

Driving industrial transformation, investing for the future

UniCredit Unlocked is our unigue Strategy tailored
to our inherent strengths and flexible enough to

adapt to a changing environment.

Over the past few years, we were committed
to Unlocking trapped potential and laying the
foundations of a fully transformed UniCredit.

Today, we have one Group with one Vision, Culture and
Strategy and clear direction to harmonise and leverage

scale and scope — best-in-class product factories,

converding technology and operations. We also have
a network of 13 local banks empowered to manage
their own operations locally within a streamlined

organisation capable to deliver operations locally
within a streamlined organisation capable of delivery.

Unlocked Potential
Laying the foundations of a fully transformed UniCredit: 2021 to 2024

Empowerment
and trust

13 Banks empowered
by clear Principles and Values,
cascading Group Strategy.

Investing, trusting and
empowering our people with
clear Principles and Values.

e Read more on page 30

22

Simplification

and streamlining
Leaner and delayered
organisation, with decisions

closer to the clients where
it matters.

Simplified and
harmonised processes.

e Read more on page 38

>> Leverading

common strengths

One Vision, One Culture,
One Strategy.

Product factories,
procurement and technology
under common denominator
leveraging scale and scope.

e Read more on page 46

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts



The financial results achieved to date are a
testament of scale and progress made with the
holistic top-to-bottom industrial transformation.

We are not only delivering excellent results, but more
importantly we are producing the right kind of results.

Results that show the discipline with which we are
focusing on quality profitable growth, operational
and capital efficiency, building lines of defence and
continuing to invest in the business for the future.

e A\
Quality Operational Capital
Growth Excellence Excellence
Focusing on capital-light Simplification and streamlining to Considered capital allocation and
growth and quality lending, target efficiencies and optimisation,  active portfolio management to
while maintaining discipline while continuing to invest in ensure sustainable, best-in-class
in origination. the future. ordanic capital generation.

\. J

Unlocking Acceleration

2025 and beyond: Ushering in a new era of sustainable growth

The same,
evolving Strategy

Building on our structural strengths
with new alpha initiatives to widen
our competitive dap.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

Having laid the foundations and released our full
potential, we're entering the next phase, where
we'll evolve, not change, our Strategy.

UniCredit Unlocked will maintain the same unifying
Vision, Culture and inspiring Purpose, while the focus
of the Strategy will be on Unlocking Acceleration to
unleash our full potential and widen the competitive
gap further to herald a new era of sustainable growth.

In the rest of this report, we dive deeper into our
progress adainst our UniCredit Unlocked Strategy.

e Read more on pagde 63
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Delivering excellence in 2024

Todgether, every chande we make, every month
of the year, throughout all our businesses across
all our geographies, contributes to delivering
excellence and reaching our ambitions

@ Review all our milestones on our Reporting microsite

Employee daycare opened
by HypoVereinsbank
Office in Munich supports
our work-life balance

Customers rate Bulbank Online
#1 in internet banking

Launch of EmpoweringU
UniCredit's first holistic approach
to employee well-being

UniCredit included as an Equileap
Top 100 gender equality company
Ranked #2 in Italy for the third year in a row

» » G

UniCredit named Top Employer a America's Cup 2024

in Europe for the eighth year UniCredit becomes the event's Global Partner,
exclusive Global Banking Partner, and is named
partner of the UniCredit Youth America's Cup
Bank iD launched in the Czech Republic
Smoothing organisations’ access

to online services

24 UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts
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@ strategy @ Clients ®EsG @ UniCredit Foundation
@ Finance @ People & Culture @ Digital & Data
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UniCredit launches My Advisory o)

Making our expertise easier to access §

for wealth management and private UniCredit offers contactless services 2
banking clients in the Czech Republic and Slovakia

250

z

Contactless ATMs g

UniCredit’s strategic support for g

German startups with GetYourGuide g

Continuing to set industry benchmarks %

by fostering growth in the tech sector @

» D

i

2

@ Women'’s financial advisory month e Focusing on women in digital a

Leveraging on dedicated products A series of initiatives to empower
and services to help women female employees' growth 5
plan their finances =

.
e

@ New Employer Value Proposition
Unlocking a Better Tomorrow;
for colleagues, clients

and communities
o0

@ Pre-approved loans for small-sized clients
Advisors provide exclusive service
for smaller businesses

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts 25



Delivering excellence in 2024 continued

UniCredit’s online branch buddy
becomes new official banking partner

of the Davis Cup 2024

G UniCredit supports Education
Academy project in Austria

Free facility CAPE 10 helps children
and young people to learn

¥

1Q24 Group Results
Record results, significant value ahead

Statement on Natural Capital @ UniCredit in Germany hosts the third
and Biodiversity edition of our Culture Day
UniCredit's first comprehensive framework
. oo

to link biodiversity and climate ' ‘

Basket Bond ESG: from UniCredit and CDP
Two new rounds for Italian
programme funding

>€ 143m

funding

26 UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts



@ Clients ®EsG
@ People & Culture

@ strategy
@ Finance

UniCredit supports Europe’s largest
liability management operation
TIM NetCo/KRR deal worth €5.5 billion

e

UniCredit starts process of acquiring
Vodeno and Aion Bank

2Q24 & 1H24 Group Results

Record quarter and first half results;
profitable growth and superior distribution
trajectory continue

Net Zero targets set on Shipping and
Commercial Real Estate sectors in addition
to Steel sector disclosed in January

» D

e UCF Edu-Fund Platform launched
Helping to lift young people out
of educational deprivation

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

@ Digital & Data

@ UniCredit Foundation

@ SmartBizz app now live
Accelerating loan approvals
for small businesses

» GEEEEEED

@ Zaba's Al virtual assistant enhanced
Saving clients’ and bankers’ time

@ Launch of UniCredit for CEE
Helping micro and small
enterprises to grow

s

27
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Delivering excellence in 2024 continued

UniCredit acquires around 9%
equity stake in Commerzbank AG

9y,

Equity stake

O

Digital Strategy moves to Phase Il
Tech and talent transformation accelerates

o

Digital Days reloaded
Showcasing our Digital team
to the Group

12,000

Online connections

Expansion of our onemarkets Fund

- -

» » D

Launch of UNA App
Simplifying business processes
for employees and customers

28

UniCredit’s €15 million social impact loan
Provided to Nuova Assistenza Soc. Coop.

Sociale ONLUS

Leading the way for digital corporate
banking in Germany

€5 billion plafond
Supporting Italian businesses that
reduce energy consumption

with “Transizione 5.0” @

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts



@ strategy @ Clients ®EsG @ UniCredit Foundation

@ Finance @ People & Culture @ Digital & Data g
@ Second annual ESG Day §
tackles pressing concerns
A challenged future: choosing the path ahead
r- - -n
4Q24 & FY24 Group Results g
Unlocking Acceleration: Record results =
crowning 16 consecutive quarters of
quality growth m
a
5
@ Talento Diffuso project extended o
Enhancing employee talent in Italy z
€8.3 million g
Financing Agroloop Kft with g
innovative greenfield investment 3
» »

3Q24 & 9M24 Group Results Q FT names UniCredit Global Bank of the Year
Record third-quarter and nine-month Won the award for the second time
results, ushering in a new era of

JEmTy

sustainable quality growth

UniCredit Bulbank to use 75% dgreen energy
Contract signed with photovoltaic

For the second time,
power plant ﬁrst.

UniCredit secures majority stake
in Alpha Bank Romania

Over €1 million to support education

in Serbia

Investing in initiatives to help transform
the education system, from 2023 to 2026

— 0 0 0 @

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts 29



Strategic focus areas

» Empowerment
and trust

A winning mentality grounded in clear Principles and Values
and a shared Culture of Empowerment and trust. Fostering
bottom up ideas and an environment where people are
proud to own and drive growth and success.

Our progress this year

2024 was another year of extensive listening
to our people and joint work across all levels
to spread and reinforce the Culture and Values
that define us.

Today, as a transformed bank, our people feel
connected, valued, embrace a can-do attitude,
and view mistakes as opportunities to learn,
all in the relentless pursuit of excellence.

We made significant investments in education,
professional development, and continuous
learning, nurturing our talent for long-term
SUCCESS.

This progress has contributed to our recognition
as Global Bank of the Year for the second
consecutive year by The Banker.

e Read more on page 32

16 . 600

Culture roadshows
With 20k colleagues involved,
including CEO and Leadership Team

£30m

To UniCredit Foundation
Strengthening our focus on
Youth and Education

Colleagdues in Italy

participating in reskilling plan
Moved from central functions to
commercial branches, as a blueprint
to be extended to the overall Group

25k

Participants in UniCredit University
in Italy in 2024, with 50 hours of
active learning per capita

30

>16k

Hirings in business divisions,

since 2021, 9k of which young talents,

transforming the organisation
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@ Group

Strategic focus areas )» Empowerment and trust continued

Empowering teams to lead

A new major training programme for our people

in Italy has introduced new collaborative ways of
working at UniCredit, empowering decision-making
for our credit teams.

Implemented in June 2022, after a year of
preparatory activities, our Empowerment Italy —
Credit Delegations project is a significant example
of how UniCredit has transformed. It has helped
employees to better support our new business
model, as they have gained awareness and
accountability. It has also aligned our risk and
business functions, encouraged dgreater collaboration
and enabled both functions to jointly take ownership
of the Italian credit portfolio, guaranteeing a strong
risk presidium.

>2,000

People trained in Italy
by FY23 to take c.90%
credit decisions vs +5% in
FY21 (based on volumes)

/0

Hours training per person,
over 356 classrooms and
80 teachers

Supported by a comprehensive preparatory training
programme, the project Empowerment Italy —
Credit Delegations project has:

Enhanced customer proximity

Rebuilt and empowered our first line of defence
Refocused and evolved our second line of defence
of risk management

Clarified the roles between first and second line
of defence, strengthening our controls framework.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts




0w

Unlocking the talents of all our people

Everyone has intrinsic abilities and skills that can help
us to succeed. That’s the idea behind Talento Diffuso.

Talento Diffuso stemmed from a listening campaign
piloted in 2023. We engaged with 28,000 colleagues
to discover what motivated them and what inherent
talents they wanted to develop. We then committed
to building a personalised training path that helps
them grow, express these skills and unlock their
true potential, professionally and personally.

More than 12,000 colleagues across UniCredit Italy,
including Retail, Corporate and Private Banking

as well as Central Functions, Competence lines,
Wealth Management and Large Corporates, have
joined the initiative since its launch in 2023.

Almost 2,200 colleagues have completed a blended
learning path with online courses and an on-site
“Talent Development Lab” resulting in individual
development plans; another 4,000 colleagues

from Network Italy and Central Functions, Wealth
Management, Large Corporates will be involved in
2025 in experiential workshops dedicated to personal
efficacy and enhancement of their own talents.

-ulr-'.
EH.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

“I have learned to pay attention to the talents
of my colleagues. The talent of each person
allows us to create value: that’s the true
essence of Talento Diffuso.”

Elisabetta Zavagli
Operational Manader, Private Area Lombardia East

“The Talento Diffuso programme definitely
helped me become more conscious about our
work, providing me better understanding of what
will be in the focus of our Bank in the future.”

Fabio Maltese
Private Banker

“Joining Talento Diffuso means | have increased
the awareness of my talents, and | manage my
daily work life much more effectively.”

Francesco Lerza
Manager, Corporate Area Napoli

33

wn
-~
=
Q
=3
o
=
(g}
F
m
=
1]
g

M3IN3Y |eIDUBUIY

M3IN3Y DS3

110day pa1epiosuo)

110day Auedwo)

JEmTy



Strategic focus areas )» Empowerment and trust continued

Employee daycare
opens in Munich

HypoVereinsbank is supporting colleagues’ work-life Housed in a distinctive circular building with a rooftop
balance by opening a daycare centre in Munich. garden, the centre is a protected, inspiring and traffic-

Bavaria’s shortage of childcare places makes it free environment where children can play and relax.

challenging for colleagues to balance their work The new centre is part of a broader offering that

and family life. The bank’s innovative daycare centre, supports a sustainable, family-friendly corporate culture,
operated with Dussmann KulturKindergarten GmbH, such as flexible care options for elderly or dependent
bridges the gap by providing childcare spots for relatives and children, and a Parents4Parents network
36 children aged three months to three years. for parents to connect and exchange ideas.
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Serbia

Over €1 million to support education in Serbia
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UniCredit Bank and the UniCredit Foundation in Serbia We plan to reach more than 10,000 students in
have invested over €1 million in an educational initiative  the underdeveloped regions of Serbia by 2026, via

to help schools and teachers transform the country’s a network of 100 dedicated and innovative teachers o
education system and unlock the potential of young who will focus on concrete actions in their communities. 2
people, in the period from 2023 to 2026. “Investing in education is an investment in the r?
The RePower project builds on partnerships established  future of our community. It is not only socially g
with Junior Achievement Serbia, the Nordeus Foundation responsible, but also a smart business decision.
and Teach For All, alongside the Faculty of Philosophy at  One of UniCredit’s key priorities is education, and
the University of Belgrade. The aim is to strengthen local we actively cooperate with many institutions in Q
communities and provide teachers with the tools they order to ensure that educational programmes r;n’
need to build more inclusive school environments, reflect the state’s strategic goals. We believe 2
reflecting the enduring commitment of the UniCredit that in this way we are creating a synergy
Foundation to the development of young people. that will benefit our country.”
In just one year, 11,629 students and around 300 Nikola Vuletic é
teachers from 190 secondary schools took part in President of the Management g
programmes including a Business Challenge, Student Board of UniCredit Bank 8
Company, Financial Literacy and Business Ethics, 3
as well as a Special Challenge competition. &
3
G July a Group e
Bold move to lift young people
. . . o
out of educational deprivation z

The UniCredit Foundation advanced its mission

to Empower Europe’s Next Generation by launching
the UCF Edu-Fund Platform with a total commitment
of €14 million.

The initiative seeks to foster quality education and
promote regional growth by engaging community

The initiative is open all year round. Its funding pool
offers three streams of funding opportunities, ranging
from €100,000 to over €1 million, to non-profits
across Austria, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Bulgaria,
Croatia, the Czech Republic, Germany, Hundary,

Italy, Romania, Serbia, Slovakia, and Slovenia.

stakeholders, contributing to a more equitable future.
It supports multidimensional projects focused on the
academic challenges young people face in countries
where we operate. Examples include preventing
school dropouts, addressing inadequate educators’
skills, encouraging university education and improving
employability for students aged 11 to 19.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

The entities must have a comprehensive background
in fostering quality education, regional development,
and an inclusive response to their communities’
educational needs.

35



Strategic focus areas )» Empowerment and trust continued

O

Women’s financial

advisory month helps bridge
the financial gender dap

UniCredit firmly believes that investing in financial
education for women generates long-term benefits
and boosts the sustainable development of
communities and social inclusion.

We used International Women’s Day (IWD) on

8 March to launch a month-long series of initiatives
in Italy aimed at bridging the gender gap and raising
women’s financial literacy levels.

An IWD open day for women in over 100 branches
of the bank throughout Italy kicked off our women’s
financial advisory month. Over 30,000 customers
were invited to complete a wealth questionnaire

to determine their personal requirements around
financial planning, wealth management

and insurance.

{4

Effective financial management is

a key lever in empowering women and
enhancing their independence. Mastering
money management is crucial, as it can
significantly impact their ability to make
autonomous decisions and foster both
personal and professional development.

Marianna Plafoni
Head of Retail at UniCredit in Italy

A woman’s goals and financial needs change
throughout her life, and her investment
strategy can adapt to reflect this.

Our wealth guestionnaire helps us provide our
female clients with the tools and information

they need for a profitable and flexible investment

strategy over time, via a transparent approach to
consciously manage their assets and provide
long-term oversight of their finances.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts



UniCredit supports Education
Academy project in Austria

Together with the UniCredit Foundation (UCF), UniCredit
Bank Austria now provides long-term financial support
for an outstanding education project in Vienna’s most
culturally and linguistically diverse district.

The bank supports two projects by the CAPE 10 social
and health facility in Favoriten — an Education Academy
and a Hobby Lobby education initiative. Its €600,000
contribution is part of our drive to promote equal
educational opportunities for children and young people.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

6

UniCredit Bank Austria is making a sustainable
financial contribution to this outstanding project.
The CAPE 10 initiative is paving the way for
young people to complete school. With the
Education Academy, it offers students in Vienna
a low-threshold free learning and education
programme as an important supplement to the
regular curriculum. The aim is to provide equal
educational opportunities for all children and
young people in a culturally and linguistically
diverse district.

Ivan Vlaho
UniCredit Bank Austria CEO

37

wn
-~
=
Q
=3
(1]
=
(o]
F
m
=
™
g

M3IN3Y |eIDUBUIY

M3IN3Y DS3

110day pa1epiosuo)

110day Auedwo)

JEmTy



Stratedic focus areas continued

» Simplification
and streamlining

A new way of working in a leaner and more efficient
ordanisation, with decisions closer to the clients. Simplifying
and harmonising processes to deliver a seamless experience
and focus our people on what creates value.

Our progress this year

At UniCredit, we continuously rethink our
ordanisation, questioning every process,
operation and capability to ensure we are
focused on what truly adds value for both
our clients and the Bank.

us and our clients and creating a leaner
organisational structure for faster and
more efficient delivery.

We reviewed numerous key processes also
leveraging technology and Al to automate
2024 was a year of significant achievements — and reduce complexity, improving our ways of
we accelerated our simplification and working while enhancing the most impactful
streamlined initiatives, reducing layers between steps, driving greater efficiency and value.

Q Read more on page 40

c-35% 2k 106

Reduction in Simplification proposals Al use cases

ordganisational
structures
€.-50% in Holding

S5

Fewer layers to the client
(4 from 9)

38

€.50% in implementation
across 10 countries

>530

Apps decommissioned
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Stratedic focus areas )» Simplification and streamlining continued

Consumer
lending simplifieo

Giving our clients a streamlined
and more efficient experience

UniCredit has moved from a top-heavy, centralised
organisation to a leaner, faster and more effective
structure, with a significant reduction in
organisational complexity.

This transformation is down to our focus on
simplification. We do it by applying a “blank sheet
approach” to everything we do — across all countries
and functions. We question every process from
scratch, ensuring that we focus on what truly

adds value.

In Italy, we've successfully applied this approach
and redesigned consumer lending process, and
in doing so we created a Group benchmark

and a common new way of working.

Today, 95% of consumer loans in Italy are
processed in this new, efficient and faster way.
Clients are experiencing a faster experience with
quicker loan approval — from over 24 hours to just
25 minutes — in a redesigned and a seamless
journey, consistent across all channels.

Our people are reducing their task load to

focus on higher-value and client-facing activities.
Our business is benefiting from lower operating
costs and high scalability across segments and
countries, and our shareholders are enjoying

the benefits of our improved performance.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts




@ Bosnia and Herzegovina
New UNA App improves

business processes
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UniCredit has launched its new UNA App in Bosnia and Built using a microservice architecture, the new 2
Herzegovina, simplifying everyday business processes UNA App benefits from greater flexibility, scalability

and providing a faster service for customers. and easier maintenance, as well as robust security -

Our customers enjoy 1.6 times faster interactions measure.s.klldeates and new features are delivered g

with the system, thanks to a user-friendly interface rore quickty. §
and streamlined features. We estimate that some This project is being developed in collaboration with
business process tasks in the new application colleagues from UniCredit in Mostar and Banja Luka,

will run 40% faster, helping colleagues focus highlighting the power of cross-team co-operation o

on delivering better experiences for clients. and the shared commitment to excellence found g

across our network in Bosnia and Herzegovina. %

S

Q
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Stratedic focus areas )» Simplification and streamlining continued

Q October e Germany

Leading the way for digital
corporate banking in Germany

HypoVereinsbank (HVB) was awarded third place in
the FINANCE madazine 2024 Banks Survey of the best
corporate banks in Germany, repeating our success in
2023's survey.

The FINANCE Banks Survey is one of the key indicators
of performance and customer orientation in German
corporate banking and gives a comprehensive insight
into the developments and trends in the industry.

HVB came first in the “Digitalisation of Corporate
Customer Business” category, recognising the successful
implementation of our digital transformation strategy
and the value to corporate clients of our strategic
investments in digital solutions. This underlines the
growing need for broad digital platform solutions

in corporate banking.

In the last three years, we have reduced over 1,000
individual processes and achieved significant efficiency
gains, including reducing the time between application
and disbursement of consumer loans by 30%.

We also achieved a productivity dain of over 10%

in mortgage loan applications thanks to process
automation and simplification. In wealth management,
we managed to reduce processing times by more than
30%. Additionally, we worked intensively on our product
catalogue, adapting and simplifying it according to our
customers’ needs.

é¢

These pleasing rankings are a great
confirmation that we are on the right
track with our Strategy. They underline
the importance of continuous change
and our ability to adapt. They motivate
us to constantly improve and offer our
customers the best possible service.

Martin Brinckmann
Head of Small and Medium Corporates

42

HVB is popular with German SMEs: more than half of
the survey’s SME respondents placed HVB in top place.
We were second in the “Most Commmon House Banks”
category, with particularly strong support from
companies with a turnover of less than €250 million,
two-thirds of whom list HVB as their principal bank.

HVB also came second in the “Best Service Level”
and “Advice on Sustainable Financing/ESG” categories.

Since 2023 we have ordanised 111 events at our
Innovation Hub, with participation from over 12,517
people across all divisions. With the Regional Innovation
Days, we addressed topics ranging from Al and digital
platforms to security, leadership, and entrepreneurship.
33% of the sessions were co-organised with external
partners, contributing to the promotion of digital
innovation and knowledge sharing. Additionally,

our Democracy Hub Campaign hosted five events
focused on democracy and our Bank’s engagement,
with participation from over 1,180 people.

For the coming year, HVB has set itself the goal of
defending our leading position in digitalisation
and further improving our overall position.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts
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UniCredit supports Europe’s largest

liability management operation

UniCredit has played a pivotal role in structuring the
finance for the transfer of TIM Group’s NetCo business
to Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. LP (KKR) — including

a huge liability management operation that allows TIM
to compete more effectively in its key Italian markets.

Earlier, in April, we supported TIM in the closure of the
sale of NetCo, acting as bookrunner, mandated lead
arranger, documentation bank and facility agent

for a financing term loan of €1.5 billion with an
18-month maturity.

Enhanced Zaba Al saves time
for clients and colleagues

Zagrebacka banka (Zaba)’s virtual assistant — Mia —
was introduced in October 2023 to shorten waiting
times for clients and free up time for contact centre
agents to provide a better service. A year later, Mia
is handling over 20% of all calls.

Almost 70% of Zaba'’s clients bank digitally, with
95% of all transactions carried out online. Mia is
a key feature of the bank’s digital service, filtering
calls and answering the most frequently asked
guestions around card and online payments as
well as general information about our services.

>20%

Calls handled by Mia
after a year of operation

0]

~/0%

Zagrebacka banka (Zaba)
clients bank digitally

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

We also acted as joint lead manader for one of the
largest liability management operations ever carried
out in Italy, and the largest carried out in Europe for a
corporate issuer. This was for a €5.5 billion equivalent
“par-to-par” exchange to enable a significant portion
of TIM bonds to be contributed to NetCo.

The operation allows TIM to adopt a new business
model that will enable the Group to compete more
effectively in the Consumer and Enterprise markets

in Italy, thanks to a greater focus on industrial and
commercial components and a solid financial structure.

The introduction of Mia resulted in agents handling
22.3% fewer calls, making them available to deal
promptly with more complex client enquiries.

Mia’s accuracy is paramount: the answers given

are always consistent and verified, and customer
feedback is helping to develop and improve the
service. We are working with leaders in Al technology
to further increase functionality and ensure Mia
remains the leading virtual assistant in the

Croatian banking sector.

22.3%

Reduction in calls handled by
adents since Mia’s introduction
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Stratedic focus areas )» Simplification and streamlining continued

@ April

N .
Pre-approved

loans for small-
sized clients

44

Small companies are the backbone of many
economies, so we must create innovative banking
initiatives to support their growth.

In Slovenia, we launched an exclusive pre-approved
loan service for smaller clients. UniCredit Bank
Slovenija selects companies with a solid strategy,
clear vision and an excellent credit rating. The bank’s
advisors then offer them pre-approved credit when
opening and using a transaction account with

a small business package.

Using targeted communications and repeated
contact, the bank has retained its existing
customers and attracted new ones, increasing
business volumes by meeting individual
customer needs.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts



9 Czech Republic and Slovakia

Launch of Bank iD brings seamless
online verification to Czech clients

UniCredit Bank is giving clients in the Czech Republic
an easier way to interact with key public and private
services, from submitting tax returns to getting a
prescription. Bank iD is a new app allowing people
to verify their identity using the same credentials
across a range of applications.

Bank iD is a secure mobile identity checker
that integrates with the online portals of many
government services, authorities, health and
insurance providers and private companies.

rai | Bk T
P--ﬂﬂ-ﬂ".';".'.':'u..-w
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It allows customers to verify their identity via our
smart banking app using their normal UniCredit
pin code, fingerprint or Face ID, and then log

into a third-party service in the usual way.

To activate Bank iD, UniCredit clients just need an
active online bank account, smart key activation
and the latest version of our banking app.

A range of useful public and private sector
services can be accessed with Bank iD:

> submitting tax returns

> checking the validity of personal documents
> accessing the vehicle registry

> viewing property records

> accessing the Citizen Portal

> checking pension details

> obtaining e-prescriptions

> applying for housing or family subsidies
> changing health insurance provider

> registering with a doctor

> signing contracts with mobile
operators or energy suppliers

> signing rental agreements
> signing employment contracts
or work-related document
> signing enrolment agreements for studies.

Bank iD continues to integrate with other services and
is becoming one of the most popular methods of online
identification — a clear example of UniCredit providing
simple solutions for clients and supporting the broader
needs of the communities in which we operate.

45
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Stratedic focus areas continued

» Leveraging
common strengths

One Group with a common Vision, Strateqy and
Culture. Leverading scale and scope of best-in-class
product factories, common Procurement, Didital and
Operations serving all, fully empowered, local banks.

Our progress this year

While our banks manade day-to-day All our product factories marked significant
operations, the Group provides overarching growth this year, demonstrating the potential
direction and harmonises scalable activities. of our Group; combining high-quality products

from the centre with the distribution power

In 2024, we continued investing in our . .
of our network in the countries.

product factories, reinforcing talent, and

making significant progress in our solution Additionally, our centralised procurement and
offerings. We selectively partnered with top converging digital and operational efforts protect
industry leaders to complement our in-house long-term priorities and serve the entire Group,
capabilities and deliver best-in-class solutions. offering solutions with quality and speed that

individual banks would likely find difficult
to achieve on their own.

e Read more on pade 48

£14.56n Payments 1 Group
onemarkets funds Built a Group global factory and PFOCU rement

strengthened key partnerships . .
#44 funds in 10 countries Taking back control and safeduarding

our long-term interests
>100 vendors discontinued

Insurance 597,

Setting the foundation .
for internalisation of Life FXand commodities trades

Insurance and partnership executed E2E digitally
with Alpha Life in Greece
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Expansion of Qur
onemarkets Fund
and launchﬂ'n re

A new approach to investment solutions, putting
our clients firmly at the centre of all we do.

We've continued to develop our asset management
strategy, bringing innovation to our regions as we
expand our onemarkets Fund portfolio, which
provides clients with access to a growing

selection of actively managed funds.

The onemarkets Fund portfolio offers a
comprehensive fund proposition in terms

of asset classes, geographies and investment
themes to respond to the investment strategies
of all our clients.

Through the onemarkets Funds, UniCredit offers
an exclusive selection of bespoke investment
opportunities, managed by a team of experts,
under a framework that ensures quality and
specific risk-return profiles.

The platform offers 44 funds distributed in 10
countries and €14.5 billion AUM, with a growing
selection of actively manaded options. It's a
best-in-class investment solution, developed
in-house with UniCredit’s Investment Strategy and
Product Management teams across countries, and

through partnering with experienced asset managers.

*data accurate as of 31 December 2024.

Strategic focus areas ) Leveraging common strengths continued

In October, it was launched in Greece, empowering
local Alpha Bank clients with sophisticated actively
managed investment products, while leveraging
UniCredit’s scale.

“The onemarkets Fund portfolio opens a window
to international investment opportunities for
our clients and gives them the option of
investing in mutual funds managded by asset
managers. It offers innovative products and
stratedgies covering all investment profiles,
leveraging UniCredit’s expertise combined with
the extensive experience and strong performance
of Alpha Bank’s Asset Management teams.”

Vassilios Psaltis

Alpha Bank CEO

In addition, our partnership with Azimut means
that Nova, a second fully-fledged funds business,
is at the heart of our open platform to support the
continuous launch of new funds in Italy. Part of the
onemarkets funds, 13 Nova funds are available
with €3.3 billion AUM*.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts
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buddy named Davis Cup 2024
Official Banking Partner

The International Tennis Federation’s appointment of
buddy, UniCredit’s new online branch, as the new official
banking partner of the famous Davis Cup has served up
opportunities to present the new digital and remote
service model to customers.

buddy is a complementary, not an alternative, service
model to the physical one. Customers can choose
where, how, and when to be served, with the

same service level.

In September, UniCredit presented buddy to customers
in Bologna during the group-stage Davis Cup finals,
which also took place in Manchester, Valencia and
Zhuhai. We also stayed close to customers in Bologna
when the final eight teams played in November.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

Several other initiatives since buddy’s launch, such

as Roma 2024 European Athletics Championships and
local projects related to universities, have underlined
the focus on innovation, and commmitment to stay
close to our territories.

“With buddy as Official Banking Partner of the
Davis Cup we confirm our commitment to promote
sport as a powerful means of inclusion and personal
growth, encouraging the development of the
communities and territories in which we operate.”

Annalisa Areni
Head of Client Strategies at UniCredit in Italy
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Strategic focus areas ) Leveraging common strengths continued

& oo

UniCredit gets on board the America’s Cup

The famous America’s Cup set sail with UniCredit on
board for the first time as its Global Partner and Global
Banking Partner, reflecting our belief in teamwork and
relentlessly pursuing success. UniCredit also sponsored
the inaudural UniCredit Youth America’s Cup Redatta,
enabling us to support young people’s sailing talent
and promote sustainable development.

Our overall sponsorship served as a platform to engage
and inspire existing and future client relationships.

We reserved spaces for clients on a dedicated boat

to watch the races. 20 UniCredit structures included a
stand where we welcomed 50,000 visitors and a photo
booth that racked up 10,000 360° video experiences.

50

We didn’t miss the opportunity to engage with
colleagues, including 70 who exemplified teamwork

in the project team. We offered free hospitality passes
for the AC37 Preliminary Regatta in Vilanova i la Geltrd,
near Barcelona, so our people could experience the
event first-hand.

We also had a stand at the Race Village at the Louis
Vuitton 37th America’s Cup and Puig Women'’s Cup,
with endaging activities for colleagues.

“We are proud to be partnering with an event that
showcases talent and prioritises environmental
and sustainable practices. This is fully aligned
with UniCredit’s Strategy.”

Andrea Orcel
UniCredit Group CEO

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts
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UniCredit advances its technology with
Vodeno and Aion Bank acquisition
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UniCredit has entered into a binding agreement to “Aion and Vodeno represents a strategic §
acquire the entire share capital of Belgium'’s Aion investment for our Group, unlocking the full oy
Bank and its digital partner Poland’s VVodeno for potential of entering new markets thanks to a )
around €370 million. The acquisition will amplify highly flexible and scalable business model, fully 2
our digital capabilities with next-generation, scalable in line with UniCredit growth goals and ambitions.
and flexible cloud-based banking technology, without A&V will contribute to denerate further excess
depending on third-party core banking providers. cash and capital in the medium term and a
The companies include banking-as-a-service SR L G 1 [ A Ee \,/’alue g
products via Vodeno’s cloud platform and 200 forour shareholders and stakeholders. )
engineers, developers, and data scientists who can Fiona Melrose
help us innovate and develop a seamless offering Head of Group Strategy & ESG at UniCredit o
for clients. It will allow UniCredit to embed financial z
solutions directly into the customer journeys of é
fintechs, retailers, e-commerce marketplaces, %
banks and technology providers, and to pursue 3
new, tardeted client segments and European =
market expansion.
3
9
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Strategic focus areas ) Leveraging common strengths continued

O o

UniCredit acquires majority share
in Alpha Bank Romania

UniCredit has acquired a 90.1% stake in Alpha Bank,
creating the third largest banking group by assets
in Romania.

This is the start of a gradual integration of Alpha
Bank Romania into UniCredit Group, which will be
completed with the merger through absorption of
Alpha Bank Romania S.A. within UniCredit Bank S.A.,
estimated to take place in the second part of 2025.

The merger will bring together two complementary
banks, both with longstanding relationships and
expertise in the Romanian market. The corporate
and retail experience of UniCredit Romania and
Alpha Bank Romania will strengthen the position
of the resulting bank.

52

“This is a decisive step in our strategic
partnership with Alpha, allowing us to further
enhance our presence in the country for the
benefit of clients and our wider stakeholders.
The resulting bank will be well positioned for
growth opportunities in the Romanian market, as
well as for the development of the potential of all
employees in Romania and across the wider Group”

Andrea Orcel
CEO of UniCredit

“Together with UniCredit, we are building

a leading bank in the Romanian market —
reflecting Alpha Bank’s longstanding presence
in the country — while actively collaborating
across multiple areas to deliver top-tier services
to Greek companies expanding into Europe and
to European groups looking to invest in Greece.’

Vassilios Psaltis
CEO of Alpha Services and Holdings

“We are happy to collaborate with the Alpha
Bank Romania team. During this transition
period, we are ensuring business development,
quality service to our customers and the best
possible work environment for employees.”

Mihaela Lupu
CEO of UniCredit Bank Romania

“l am confident that today’s step towards

a merder lays the groundwork for one of

the most important, dynamic and customer-
focused banking institutions in Romania. This
institution resulted will stand as a modern,
leading force in the industry — one that not
only meets but anticipates the evolving needs
of our customers and all stakeholders in an
increasingly competitive and fast-changing
business landscape.”

Sergiu Oprescu
Executive President of Alpha Bank Romania

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts
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UniCredit provides
€15 million social impact loan

In line with our ESG Strategy, UniCredit has provided
a social impact loan of €15 million over eight years
to Nuova Assistenza, a cooperative working in the
socio-health, welfare and educational sectors in Italy.

The loan is to support the construction of new
long-term care facilities (RSAs) in Tuscany and
Sardinia and the acquisition of a number of facilities
already manaded by the organisation. This will enable
Nuova Assistenza to increase the number of beds it
offers by over 300 — with 144 in the new facilities
and 177 in the facilities already managed by

the organisation.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

The investment is backed by SACE’s Garanzia Futuro

and is subsidised due to the social impact generated,
in terms of the wellbeing of guests, the reduction of

waiting lists and respite afforded to caregivers.
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Strategic focus areas ) Leveraging common strengths continued

@ con
D i .t l l k d ° Our determined efforts to accelerate transformation
Igl a U n OC e e through simplification and centralisation have paid

off. We are now taking back control of our technology

O U r U pdatecj and talent, building an operating model based on

end-to-end ownership of our core technology,

Digital Strateqgy

Progressive transformation

With our technology and talent in-house, we can accelerate our evolution

and reach our potential as a top-tier digital and data-driven bank.
Four strategic areas comprise the next phase:

Transitioning
our infrastructure

Modernising our infrastructure
to make it more resilient and
suited to our evolving needs,
with a standardised architecture
for managing Group-wide
applications and data.

Enhancing our
way of working

Streamlining our organisation
and investing in our people
to improve efficiency, foster
growth and drive innovation.

54

Elevating our
application landscape

Upgrading our application
landscape with a cloud-first
approach to accelerate
development, foster synergies,
and enhance infrastructure.

Embracing Data and Al

Becoming a data-driven bank
leveraging Al and analytics to
boost profitability and create
a better, more tailored
customer experience.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts



Key achievements

Vv Expansion of our Global Bank Insurance platform
Providing customers with a more flexible, modern
and paperless experience that can bundle together
banking and insurance products.
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A Digital onboarding on buddy and all channels
The optimised flow minimises steps and user Q
inputs, making it faster than ever to become a @
UniCredit customer. This onboarding process has §
now also been extended to cards and new current
account products for UniCredit and buddy.
0
z
WV Implementation of Al for previously §
manual processes
An average of 5,000 cheques a day
are now processed using Al. o
3
T %
Q

A Rolling out GenAl solutions with UniAsk
A new way for colleagues to search the Bank’s
knowledge base of requlatory, policy and product
information using a generative-Al-powered chatbot.

€ Developing Al tools to classify M&A clients
Assessing their status as likely buyers or sellers, and
finding matches between compatible companies.
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Strategic focus areas ) Leveraging common strengths continued

Looking ahead

Potential catalysts to accelerate our Digital machine:

A significant deal with a cloud service
provider, bringing major benefits

of scale and accelerating our
transition to the cloud.

A single vendor strategy
across the Group.

Driving positive impact:

>

56

Supporting the Bank’s industrial plan by
enabling the digitalisation of our factories,
franchise and governance functions

Fulfilling the latest requlatory requirements
and future-proofing our business

Empowering the workforce of the future
by bringing technology expertise into the
Bank and reducing reliance on third parties

Delivering a single, consistent and ubiquitous
technology ecosystem to harmonise our
user experience across channels

A single integration platform
across the Group.

A single Al platform
across the Group.

Optimising run and change processes —
driving greater efficiency in the daily running
of our Digital machine while streamlining and
standardising development of new products
and services

Improving the monitoring of our digital
ecosystem through automated KPI
measurements, capacity planning and
project tracking, as well as improved
governance around third parties.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts
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UniCredit’s Strategic Support
for German Start-Ups

UniCredit’s ability to leverage its collective strengths
across markets is exemplified by its success in Germany,
where HypoVereinsbank (HVB) has positioned itself
as a key partner for the country’s most promising
start-ups. Through a dedicated Tech Team and

deep expertise in digital business models, HVB

has played a crucial role in fostering innovation

and supporting high-growth companies from

inception to global expansion.

A prime example of this approach is the collaboration
with GetYourGuide, a global online marketplace to
book travel experiences and tours, and one of
Germany’s most successful start-ups. Since its

early stages, UniCredit has been instrumental in

the company’s growth, acting as the sole private
placement agent for its secondary equity private
placement. The transaction, led by a new institutional
investor, was oversubscribed despite challenging
market conditions, underscoring GetYourGuide’s
strong trajectory.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

This partnership reflects UniCredit’s broader strategy
to empower tech-driven businesses, particularly

in future-oriented fields such as Al, technology, and
resilient digital infrastructure. By offering tailored
financial solutions — including convertible bonds,
green financing, and international expansion support
— we ensure that companies like GetYourGuide can
continue scaling successfully.

Looking ahead to 2025, we remain committed to
fostering growth in the tech sector. The expansion

of the German Tech Team with two additional key
hires will further enhance its ability to support clients
with specialised expertise. By leveraging its European
network and deep local market knowledge, we
continue to set industry benchmarks in strategic
quidance and financial solutions, reinforcing Germany’s
role as a model of excellence within the Group.
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Strategic focus areas ) Leveraging common strengths continued

@ oo

Launch of UniCredit for CEE boosts
competitiveness for micro and small enterprises

The launch of UniCredit for Central and Eastern
Europe has brought €2 billion of tailored financing
to help micro and small enterprises become more
competitive, including third sector ordanisations.

UniCredit for CEE brings concrete financial, accounts
management and advisory solutions to small
businesses across the CEE region, helping them grow
and transition to more sustainable business practices.

Finance

60 different finance solutions were made available
during 2024, including targeted programmes in

specific markets to support innovation, digitalisation,
competitiveness and sustainability. Local programmes
for certain economic sectors such as agriculture, tourism
or exporters were also made available.

58

In four markets, subsidised credit facilities for
microbusinesses will support new companies
with financing solutions, including digital
payments and financial education.

Accounts management

In some markets and under certain conditions,
fee-free periods are offered to third sector
ordanisations and newly onboarded clients.

Advisory

We support micro, small and SME clients as they
transition towards more sustainable business models.
13 ESG financing programmes help clients invest in
sustainable practices and green technologies.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts
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My Advisory: the brand-new advisory service
dedicated to private banking and wealth
manadement clients in Italy

UniCredit has launched a new advisory service Furthermore, the new platform allows clients
for high net worth clients, combining advanced to receive complete and detailed reporting,
portfolio analysis methodologies with the expertise both periodic and on-demand, allowing them
of UniCredit’s investment strategy experts. to monitor the performance of investments

My Advisory leverages on a newly developed T & ATl Siiple S EUe o2

platform designed to help Bankers identify clients’ The result is a service that stands out for its
needs and share tailored investment proposals quality, customised reporting and tailor-made
with them, supported by advanced portfolio investment advisory.

and risk analysis.

With its multichannel approach, My Advisory
combines traditional and digital channels,
ensuring clients can count on the personal
attention of their Banker, while monitoring
their financial assets remotely.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts
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Financial Review

A transformed bank delivering
three years of outstanding results

Three years of cultural, industrial and financial We have successfully completed the first phase
transformation have elevated UniCredit to the position of UniCredit Unlocked as a transformed bank that
of the leading pan-European bank. UniCredit has delivered sixteen consecutive quarters of profitable
consistently delivered outstanding financial results growth, crowning our best year ever and with all
quarter after quarter, whilst setting a new benchmark  regions contributing.

for banking.

We beat our Unlocked targets set in 2021,
reaching a new sustainable run rate

2024 Target 2024 Actual

Quality ,]\

Gross Revenue
Growth c.€19bn €24.8bn

Net Revenue

CAGR FY21-FY24 +C% +14% I

Fee growth

CAGR FY21-FY24 it +6% I '

Net NPEr ¢.1.8% 1.4+ = I"
Operational ,r

Cost-to-income ratio 0 0
Excellence c.20% 37.9%

Total Costs €9.40n €9.40n /

: Notwithstanding higher—‘
than-expected inflation
Capital Net-revenue-to-RWA ¢
. 0 (1)

Excellence fetio 2.3% 8.7%

CET1r 12.5-13% 15.9+ < I‘
e Read more about our Strategy on pages 16-23 A Exceeded target
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Strongly exceeding profitability and distribution ambitions
2024 target @ 2024 Actual

M3IA3Y J1631eNS

NET PROFIT? RoTE @13% CET1r

>€4 Spn c.10%

ul
5
@
S
(),
=
A
o
=,
o
=

L
Taxing P&L to protect our future. %
£10.3bn underlying? 2
0CG B TOTAL DISTRIBUTIONS
FY21-FY24

150 44 4ps >€16bn >€260bn %
bps (€12.6bn) 13% CET1r 15.9% CET1r §
© With >€6.5bn excess? capital for the future ‘ g

Our strong quality revenue growth was achieved Our 2024 Net Profit is now more than double what
with discipline. Our best-in-the-industry NIl ROAC we planned in 2021. 5
increased from 4% to 19%, with fees increasing at This excess capital will enable us to further boost g

a 6% CAGR, well ahead of our peers, to 33% of
total revenues. The impact of our investments
in our factories has just started to show.

our distributions going forward or provide us with
strategic flexibility.

Our RoTE at 17.7% is also significantly ahead of
the ¢.10% UniCredit Unlocked target despite our
excess capital.

Despite high levels of inflation in the countries where
we operate, we reduced costs by around €1.7 billion,
while reinvesting c£1.4 billion to strengthen our Group
— a testament of our continuous focus on operational ~ This performance maintains a balance between
excellence. As a result, our cost-to-income ratio reached ~ achieving excellence in the short-term and establishing

379% notwithstanding our complexity, beating our a solid foundation for the future. It is proof of the
peers by a significant margin. consistency of UniCredit and its people.

We also demonstrated outstanding capital efficiency, R . . .
A Distribution subject to supervisory, Board of Directors and
beating all targets on net revenue to RWA and CET1r. shareholder approvals.

This SUppOFtEd €26 billion of distributions — 65% more 1. Net Profit underlying refers to Net Profit adjusted for integration
costs and RCA case. The €4.5bn Unlocked target was referred to

than the original €16 billion target — while building «Net Profit after AT1 and cashes coupons», i.e. c.€5.0bn before
excess capital of €6.5 billion (taking €3.6 billion of AT1 and cashes coupons, comparable with the actual FY24
integration costs and €700 million of additional Net Profit at €9.3bn (before AT1 and CASHES coupons).

2. Before considering the impact of strategic investments.
overlays). 3. vstarget CET1r at 12.5-13%.
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Financial Review continued

Surpassing our peers across all relevant metrics

UniCredit remains a leader in the industry across all KPIs, beating peers by a significant margin. We delivered
the highest total shareholder return which is four times our European peers?, the best share price performance
and the most generous distributions, whilst building our excess capital.

We are bedinning the next phase of our journey from a position of significant strength able to offset the

normalisation of the macro environment.

From Laddard... to Leader
FY24 vs FY21 (Ranking)

#1 from #8

RoTE @13%

#1 from #9

Net-revenue-to-RWA ratio

#1 from #4

Total Distributions?

#1 from #5

Cost-to-income ratio

Outstanding value dgeneration
FY24 vs FY20 (compared to EU peers)

4X C.2X

TSR Total Distribution growth

among the peer group?
>5x

Share price

Uniquely positioned to deliver true differential value,
especially within a more challenging macro environment

While we are realistic with respect to the challenges
from a macro environment that will normalise,

we believe that we are best placed to deliver the
differential value and growth necessary to offset it.

Prepared for shifting macro...

NIl normalisation

Uncertain European growth outlook
CoR normalisation

Inflationary Costs pressure

Digital Evolution

Russia compression.

>
>
>
>
>
>

UniCredit is strategically positioned in regions with
higher-than-average economic growth, where the
banking sector is expanding at an accelerated pace.
This provides us with a compelling advantage over
our peers to further build on the foundations we've
established over past three years and to continue
to grow.

GDP growth (2022-24)*

GDP growth across our geographic footprint
is expected to be approximately 30 basis
points higher than the eurozone averade.

Eurozone
Average

UniCredit

1. Peersinclude BBVA, BNP, Crédit Agricole S.A., Commerzbank, Deutsche Bank, ING, Intesa Sanpaolo, Santander, Société Générale.

2. Actual disclosed distributions accrued to FY24.

3. Considering core EU peers with market cap above €30bn as of 31/12/2024, i.e. BBVA, BNP, Crédit Agricole S.A., Deutsche Bank, ING,

Intesa Sanpaolo, Santander.

4. GDP actual up to 9M24; 4Q24 Bloomberg data; FY25 UC scenario, Loans actual up to 2023; 2024 and 2025 UC scenario.
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Loan growth vs. GDP3 (2025) %*

In many of our markets, loan growth is projected
to exceed GDP growth, serving as a powerful
catalyst for continued top-line expansion.

Austria

Ce®

«  CE— o

® GDP @ Loan growth

5. Excluding Austria
6. Excluding Russia

Unlocking Acceleration in 2025 and beyond

The first phase of UniCredit Unlocked was focused to
unlock trapped potential — UniCredit has surpassed
our own ambitions set at the end of 2021, resetting
the bar higher each year. We have moved from laggard
to leader in our sector, and are now poised to enter the
next chapter of growth.

The same, evolving Stratedy

Unlocked
Potential
2021 to 2024

Laying the foundations
to release our trapped

potential.

Q Read more on pages 22-23

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

UniCredit Unlocked

Win. The Right Way. Together.

Furthermore, we have built unique lines of defence
including €1.7 billion of overlays to insulate us from the
cost of risk cycle. We have also front-loaded non-operating
items and extraordinary charges equal to €1.3 billion in
2024 alone which should also trend to zero.

Together with the strength of our transformed Group
and our alpha initiatives in flight, these lines of defence
will de-risk the achievement of our Net Profit ambitions.

As we look ahead, we are evolving our Strategy

to Unlock Acceleration of our performance while
completing our transformation. Leveraging our lines
of defence, we will build on our structural strengths
and accelerate our quality growth trajectory through
clear manaderial initiatives.

Unlocking
Acceleration
2025 and beyond

Building on our structural
strengths with new alpha
initiatives to widen our

competitive dap.
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Financial Review continued

A new roadmap to navigate as the leading pan-European Bank

We are optimally positioned to execute on this acceleration phase and solidify our position as a leading
pan-European bank and a benchmark for the sector. We have strong competitive edge thanks to our unigue
structural advantages and will build on these through alpha initiatives and investments in our business.

Our Operating Q
Machine
Ordanisation Technology & Data
& Processes Finalise taking
Continue empowering,  back control and q .
Unlocklng simplifying, delayering  boost business Our Linchpin
: and streamlining. acceleration and People
Acceleration efficiency initiatives. Continue
empowering,
training and
investing in
Our our people.
Comens @ @ O ©
Machine
Geographies Clients Products Channels
Leveraging our structural advantades
Leveraging our structural strengths ..with a clear roadmap... ...to become the Bank that...
Attractive Profitable and diversified franchise Direct capital allocation Clients recognise and trust us
Geographic Italy — Quality Earnings Powerhouse and investments to higher as the leading pan-European
Footprint Germany and Austria — Resilient Anchors growth opportunities bank, firmly gmbedded in
CEE — Profitable Growth Engine our communities
Quality High quality base Increase focus on targeted Offers clients a superior
Client Mix ¢.60% of revenues in client segments experience with people
most profitable segments and banks that care and
(SMESs?, Private, Wealth and Affluent) understand their needs
NIl RoAC at 16% in 2027 Enhance product offering and Offers clients best-in-class
Fee-to-revenue ratio? towards 40% how we grow in high-value products for all their business

With above market fee growth driven segments and individual needs
by product factories and superior

Superior
. . lending products
Business Mix g
Connecting clients with superior Move towards an Offers clients the flexibility
integrated distribution channels omnichannel offering to access when, where
offering them choice and flexibility and how they want

1. Including Microbusiness in SMEs.
2. Fees including insurance results.
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Leading Financial
Performance

Superior Lines
of Defence

Alpha initiatives

Alongside our structural strengths,
our targeted alpha initiatives will
drive our quality growth over

the next three years.

This exciting organic growth,
together with the results of our
transformation, will allow us to
absorb expected future headwinds
in full, and significantly grow without
diluting profitability.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

Our exciting story:
the emerdgence of our
true differential value

We aim to achieve c.£10 billion of Net Profit by 2027,
and to distribute in each of the next three years* more
than in FY24: of which cash dividends at 50% of Net Profit.

This is supported by a greater than 17% RoTE, an averadge ordanic
capital generation broadly in line with Net Profit, and the return
of our excess capital®.

We continue to target strong EPS and DPS growth.

This will result in six years of improving performance and growth at
an increasing margin over our cost of equity, which, coupled with an
outsized yield, should also lead to a significant re-rating of our stock.

We are excited about the challenge
and determined to meet it.

1. Subject to inorganic opportunities and delivery of financial ambitions.
2. vstarget CET12 12.5-13%.
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ESG Review

Strengthening
our ESG business

Our _propmiin
ESG Strate

Our ESG Foundations

At UniCredit we are committed
to embedding Sustainability
in everything we do

We lead by example, which is why ESG (Environmental,
Social and Governance) is at the heart of our strategic
framework. Our Purpose is to Empower Communities
to Progress, quided by three Principles:

> Holding ourselves to the highest possible standards
to do the right thing by our clients and our
communities
> Being fully committed to playing our part in
supporting our clients in a just and fair transition
> Respecting and balancing the perspectives and
priorities of all our stakeholders throughout
our business and decision-making.
Promoting ESG
dwadareness across
our ordanisation
and beyond

e Read more on page 78
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Advancing
a distinctive
social approach
with tangible results

MaIN3Y JI531811S

e Read more on page 70
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Over recent years,
we have built
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Ensuring a just and
fair transition through
clear commitments

strong ESG
foundations by:

Q Read more on page 72

110day Auedwo)

Guaranteeing accountability
and transparency, along with
a robust risk framework

e Read more on page 76
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ESG Review continued

’o
{ ) Our strengthened ESG business proposition
) =14 .

> Dedicated ESG Advisory team,
complemented by industry specialists

> Local ESG teams providing technical
support across the Group.

> ESG-focused products
> ESG factors intedgrated into the credit process.

> Open-es to assess clients’ ESG maturity
and develop tailored plans

> Regional partnerships in specific
sectors (e.g., real estate).

e Read more about our ESG Strategy

T .
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% Open-es

In March 2023, we partnered with Open-es to better support
our clients in measuring and improving their ESG performance.

Open-es unites entrepreneurs, financial
institutions and associations through
an innovative digital platform.

22

Partners

29,000

Companies

Our ESG offer

Supporting
Italian companies

with “Finanziamento
Futuro Sostenibile Plus”

We want to support companies
committed to improving their
sustainability profile through dedicated
financing tied to tailored Sustainability
objectives — based on a company’s
Sustainability and transition strategy.

In Italy, thanks to our partner, Cerved Rating Adgency,
our new product, Finanziamento Futuro Sostenibile
Plus, also offers a free and fast ESG assessment
through the Open-es platform.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

Launched in 2021 and involving more than

29,000 companies and 22 partners, Open-es is an
inclusive and collaborative ecosystem committed
to achieving ESG targets and implementing
innovative solutions. In this alliance, our role as

a value-chain leader partner is to facilitate the
sustainable development of the Italian corporate
sector with initiatives and solutions aimed at
companies of every size.

Financing the transition
with “Transizione 5.0”

UniCredit has allocated a new €5 billion
plafond to support companies taking
part in “Transizione 5.0”, a public
initiative offering tax credit for

energy efficiency projects.

This allocation is part of the third edition of
“UniCredit for Italy”, our broader programme
supporting families, individuals and businesses
since 2022. With this new plafond, the total amount
made available to Italian companies in 2024 has

reached €15 billion, for a total value of €35 billion
earmarked for individuals and businesses since 2022.

£156n

Increased funding available to
the Italian production system

M3INY J15318.11S
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ESG Review continued

T\
{ j A distinctive social approach
=0

We have a suitable, accessible, fair, and equitable

(SAFE) financial offer:

> We developed new social products, tailored to local needs,
including Futuro Sostenibile Sociale, UniCredit per ['ltalia and

UniCredit for CEE, and two new current accounts, Imprendo
Sociale and Imprendo Sociale Piu, for non-profit organisations

> We signed partnerships in the social sector.

Social finance

We support communities through social projects
and donations:

i} R > We contribute to youth and financial education, through
Direct social initiatives such as the Banking Academy in Italy and UniCredit
contribution Foundation programmes (Teach for All, Junior Achievement)
across the Group

> We promote volunteering initiatives, encouraging our
employees to directly support their communities.

We promote flexibility, well-being and people care,
enhancing Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DE&):

> We foster a culture of continuous learning through initiatives such as
Support to Culture Bootcamps, mentoring programmes, reskilling opportunities,

emp[oyees and well-being workshops
> We cultivate an inclusive and diverse workplace through employee

networks, bias-free processes and equal opportunities

> We prioritise employee well-being and quality of life through
initiatives such as “Ask for Help” resources, flexible working
arrangements, mental health awareness activities, prevention
programmes, and local welfare benefits.
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Caring for our people

Holistic well-being approach

Our commitment to well-being is embedded
in our Caring culture and ESG framework.

In February 2024, we introduced a Group holistic
approach to support our colleagues across

all stages of their lives, integrating mental,
physical, social, career, and financial
well-being into daily practices.

We mapped 365 well-being initiatives across
the Group — one for each day of the year. We
gave access to dedicated courses and an
interactive guide with practical tips and
suggestions, empowering each of us to

take charge of our own well-being journey.

365 40

Well-being initiatives Internal well-being trainers

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

Additionally, we trained c.40 internal well-being
trainers and delivered well-being workshops
across the Group.

Recognising our efforts, UniCredit has been
awarded Diversity and Inclusion Initiative of
the Year EMEA 2024 in the influential magazine
Environmental Finance’s annual Sustainable
Company Awards for its “Group holistic
well-being approach”.

M3INY J1H318.11S
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ESG Review continued

)

o

Clear commitments to support
a just and fair transition

%In 2019:

Signed the UNEP FI Principles for Responsible
Banking (PRB), which support banks in aligning
their business strategy with society’s goals and
promote financial inclusion.

®In 2022; In 2021:

Signed the Sustainable Steel Became a member of the Net
Principles, a climate-aligned Zero Banking Alliance, with
finance agreement for the a clear commitment to reduce
steel industry. e emissions of our lending portfolio.

?In 2022
Joined Finance for Biodiversity Pledge
(FfBP) Foundation, the only international
pledge dedicated to financial institutions,
calling on global leaders to protect and restore
biodiversity through their finance activities.

»

In 2022:

Became a member of the Ellen MacArthur
Foundation, an international charity that
supports the acceleration of the circular

@ €CoNomy across our countries.
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Launchrof our Statement on
Natural Capital and Biodiversity

In May 2024, we published our Statement on Natural
Capital and Biodiversity. This new statement
represents UniCredit’s first comprehensive Natural
Capital Framework, in which biodiversity and climate
issues are interconnected.

Alongside our Net Zero targets and Transition Plan,
our Natural Capital Framework also considers the
circular economy as a key lever for change. We have
already addressed nature-related issues, including
adopting the Equator Principles and publishing
policies on sensitive sectors alongside commitments
on human rights.

Our first step for our Natural Capital Framework was
to evaluate sources, methodologies and frameworks
to effectively address key challenges related to
biodiversity and nature, in coherence with the
Kunming-Montreal Global Biodiversity Framework.

We then developed a sector-level heatmap of our
loan portfolio, to assess which sectors are most
exposed to nature-related risks by gauging their
impact on nature.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

Finally, we have set up a specific training programme
to build awareness around the emerdent topics of
biodiversity and nature, which will be available

to all employees in 2025.

We endage with the circular transition by integrating
circular economy considerations into our business
operations, alongside climate-related initiatives. We
were the first Italian bank to have signed up to the
Finance for Biodiversity Pledge (FfBP), calling for
and committing to taking ambitious action on
biodiversity to reverse nature loss in this decade
through collaboration, engagement and assessing
our own biodiversity impact.

In addition, we are a member of the Working Group
on Nature within the United Nations Environment
Programme Finance Initiative (UNEP Fl), related to
Principles for Responsible Banking (PRB). We are the
only Italian bank to have contributed, together with
34 international banks, to the publication of the
‘PRB Nature Target Setting Guidance’, which aims
to help the banking sector align with the Kunming-
Montreal Global Biodiversity Framework and halt
biodiversity loss.

ENENRIEM
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ESG Review continued

< Homsay
UniCredit supports

iINnvestment in sustainable
animal feed production

UniCredit has provided a development loan of
€8.3 million to Agroloop, a Hungarian business
that produces animal feed components using
insect farm technology.

Part of an investment signed with the European
Investment Fund’s InvestEU Sustainability guarantee,
the innovative greenfield finance totals €28 million
and includes a bank guarantee of €1.5 million.

Agroloop is one of the SMEs supported by UniCredit
Bank Hungary as part of our UniCredit for Enterprises
service. The funds will be used to develop Agroloop’s
technology and expand production at the region’s
most significant insect farming and processing
facility on the outskirts of Budapest. Approximately
60 tonnes of feedstock is processed here daily.

74

Agroloop’s approach to sustainable animal feed
production is a sustainable, circular model, using
food industry by-products in the form of organic
waste from the bottom of the feed value chain.
It creates high value-added, premium quality
feed protein, feed oil and soil improver compost
that minimises emissions and has a reduced
environmental impact.

The process uses black soldier fly larvae to recycle
feed-grade food industry by-products with minimal
water and soil use. It can use 30% of the world’s food
production, which would otherwise go to waste, and
is pioneering sustainable animal feed production in
the Hungarian market.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts
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ESG Review continued
N\
(¢2); Full accountability and transparency,

= along with a robust risk framework

We set a comprehensive policy
framework to manage environmental

lg and social risks in controversial sectors,
such as Coal, Oil & Gas, Human Rights
and others.

We keep integrating climate and
environmental factors into our
risk management processes
and procedures.

We continue to enhance our ESG
Product Guidelines ensuring
homogeneous classification and
reporting of our ESG financial offer,
to prevent greenwashing and
social washing risks.

We provide disclosure on our
ESG activities, through reports
in line with sector guidelines
and recommendations.
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“* suger
UniCredit Bulbank uses

75% dreen energy

UniCredit Bulbank has signed a new three-year This partnership aligns with UniCredit Group’s
contract to accelerate its renewable energy use goals. We were the first bank in Italy to commit
and significantly reduce its carbon footprint. to a corporate power purchase agreement (PPA)
with a green energy producer. UniCredit Bulbank
is a pioneer within the CEE region, following Italy
in signing a corporate PPA and reflecting the
Group’s commitment to Sustainability and
green energy solutions.

ENENRIEM

M3IA3Y 1eIdURULY

It will now purchase electricity from a photovoltaic
power plant, so around 75% of the bank’s total
energy consumption will be from green energy
generation.

M3]naY DS3

Bulbank will purchase green energy monthly, with
an annual supply of 7,000 MWh. The origin of the
energy purchased will be guaranteed in the form of
certificates from the Sustainable Energy Development > Installing photovoltaic panels on the roof of
Agency (AUER). Sveta Nedelya. In the first seven months of
operation, they produced 23 MWh of electricity.

Other Sustainability initiatives from UniCredit
Bulbank include:

110day paiepljosuo)

The new agreement encompasses all of the bank’s o ] _ _
locations across Buldaria, except for some leased Replacing its fleet with hybrid cars. Since the

premises where electricity is invoiced by the landlord. beginning of 2024, 26 more hybrid cars have
been delivered, and 40% of its fleet is now

made up of electric and hybrid cars.

Installing additional charging stations
in the Central Office garages. Up to eight
cars can now be charged simultaneously.

1Joday Auedwo)
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ESG Review continued

( / Promoting ESG awareness

Our flagship initiative is our ESG Day. At this popular and eagerly-awaited event —
involving employees and clients — we brainstormed on key ESG-related issues
and potential solutions, as well as developing concrete actions.

We considered topics such as:

How do we resolve How can we prioritise How can we better
relevant trade-offs? social issues in our support our ESG-
approach? focused clients?

Urredlt 2024 Annu‘ai ﬁeport Elleli\ccounts
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Success story

ESG Day 2024 tackles
pressing challendes head-on

UniCredit’s second ESG Day emphasised
the urgency of addressing critical social and
environmental challenges and the need for
collective action and behavioural change
to create a sustainable future, for a just and
fair transition.

ESG Day 2024, centred around the theme

“A challenged future: choosing the path ahead”,
putting clients at the centre and designing

a customer journey to define concrete actions
to solve trade-offs and open points.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

It included a live event at the UniCredit Tower

Hall in Milan with corporate clients and strategic
partners. In parallel, local side events in various
countries included colleagues and external guests
joining the main event via live streaming, into four
languages of the Group countries (Italian, Bulgarian,
Hungdarian and German) and broadcasted in
English. We also broadcasted externally on

LinkedIn and Facebook.

13,243

Total number of participants
vs first edition
+9%
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ESG Review continued

Success story

Panels and key takeaways

A zero-sum dame?

Solving Sustainability trade-offs

> Manage conflicting interests as part of
the transition, with balancing act between
environmental, social and biodiversity issues

> No silver bullet for this difficult situation; firms
will have to take a nuanced approach, drive
gradual progress with clear governance

> Be realistic about what is being sacrificed
for what.

The social dilemma:

how climate chande and technology

are reshaping society

> Recognition of the “S” component as a
fundamental lever for a just and fair transition

> Eco-anxiety can be channelled into concrete
community actions to build resilience.

Bt .. - - : Companies must define clear ecological

ot S - i values reflecting those of their workers.

> Al is an amplification of thinking to find solution
to the social and environmental challenges.

W

The way forward:
from responsibility to response-ability

> Importance of fostering more sustainable
ways of doing business

> Examples included service providers tracking
consumer behaviour and offering rewards,
same approach could be applied to investors,
with creditors who contribute to a company’s

Sustainability goals earning a better return.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts
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The crucial nexus between climate and nature  Moving ESG discussions forward

Following the second panel, the Head of The Group ESG team, with support from
Biodiversity and Natural Capital at Iberdrola UniCredit Group Investment Strategy and Group
and Convener of the Nature Positive Initiative Stakeholder Engagement launched a white paper
discussed the connection between climate on the need to tackle issues faced by society and
and nature. the environment. “A challenged future: choosing

the path ahead” provides context and insights
into key topics, including the effects of the green
transition on society and how financial institutions
and corporate clients can play their part.

Key takeaways from the double interview
were that the world agreed at COP15 to halt
and reverse nature loss, putting nature onto
international agendas. The financial sector’s

wider presence signals increasing attention. 4 07

Number of downloads

Everyone has a part to play in saving our planet
— clients, colleagues, competitors, governments
and other influential bodies and organisations.
We change our behaviour if we stand up
together and make a concerted effort.

@ Read more about our ESG Day 2024, here

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts 81
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https://www.unicreditgroup.eu/en/esg-and-sustainability/esg-day.html

ESG Review continued

Our progress
to date

In 2024 we fully achieved our ESG tardets across products

From ESG volumes to ESG penetration ESG penetration (FV24)

Focus on ESG share over total FYe4 Actual - @ FYe4 Target

H il
business for a more transparent ESG lending

. . . Good performance on 15%
view on UniCredit’s ESG performance. enviranmental lending with
Three indicators netting out overall market £26.9bn, while outperforming .
effects unrelated to ESG. on social lending with €13.2bn 15%

since January 2022.

ESG Investment Products?
Positive year with improved 53%
ESG penetration rate at 53%

(c£106bn stock) at FY24 vs 50%
48% at December 2023.

Sustainable Bonds?

Good performance with €32.9bn 20%
issuance since January 2022 with
focus on Corporates and Financial
Institutions in alignment with
Group Strategy.

Governance

Environment Social

Sustainable financial Social financing for
instruments and Net Zero initiatives in our

ESG-aligned remuneration,
solid DE&I framewaork.

Q Read more @
on page 85

1. KPI calculated as £SG new production Including Environmental, Social and sustainability-linked lending, divided by MLT loans new production in given year.
2. Based on Art. 8 and 9 SFDR regulation.
3. LT Credit. KPI calculated as ESG all regions’ bonds, including Sustainability-linked bonds, divided by all regions’ bonds for given year.

commitments. communities.

Q Read more @ Q Read more @
on page 83 on page 84
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@ Environment

We advanced our sustainable financial
instruments, reaching a total of €26.9 billion
in cumulative green lending since January 2022

11 €60.50n 2030

Green Bonds issued Total amount of financing New tardets set for key

from Green Bonds carbon-intensive sectors
We issued 11 Green Bonds, In 2024, we continued to turn our
totalling €6.5 billion in financing;: Net Zero commitment into action:

We disclosed our first Transition Plan,
which outlines the implementation of

‘ ' 3 (Jun 21, €1bn: Nov 22, €1bn: Nov 23, €0.75bn)  [RRGAIEEERCENEe A SV CR IR
organisation for the three priority sectors.

Senior Green Bonds

Green Mortdgage Covered Bonds

. 2 (May 22, €0.5bn; Sep 22, €0.5bn)
We set new 2030 tardets for key

4 3 (May 22, €0.5bn; Feb 23, €0.75bn; carbon-intensive sectors (Steel, Shipping,

@ Jan 24, €0.75bn) Commercial Real Estate), and defined an
emissions baseline for Residential Real Estate.

aa
- 2 (Sep 21, €0.06bn; Sep 23, €0.047bn)

~ 1 (Jun 23, €0.5bn)

We extended our Net Zero Transition Plan
deliverables (e.g., client clustering, supporting
tools) to the new sectors for which the targets

have been disclosed.

e Read more on Net Zero in E1 Climate change
in our Sustainability Statements

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts
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ESG Review continued

@ Social

Since 2022, we have provided €13.2 billion
in social financing via micro-credit, impact
financing and lending to disadvantaded areas

£35bn

UniCredit per U'ltalia,

including +€5bn credit
“Piano Transizione 5.0

€30m

Enhanced funding to
UniCredit Foundation

€155m

Issued in our
own social bond

15,000

hours dedicated to
volunteering by
our colleagues

€78.1m

Social contribution?

>/00,000

Financial education
beneficiaries reached

Our efforts included local initiatives to support
communities such as UniCredit per lltalia, adding
up to €35 billion (including additional €5 billion

to support corporates with “Piano Transizione 5.0”).

We also joined the Venice Sustainability Foundation to
promote local Sustainability and issued a €155 million
social bond to support communities.

In 2024, our social contribution? rose to €78.1 million
(€60 million in 2023), of which in 2024, €30 million was
allocated to UniCredit Foundation (€20 million in 2023).
Around 50% of our social contribution is dedicated to
youth and education.

Since 2022 we have invested in financial education
and ESG awareness initiatives, reaching over 700,000
financial education beneficiaries across our countries,
focusing on priority targets such as the young, women
and vulnerable individuals. In 2024, we launched our
Skills for Transition programme to deliver training

to young people and businesses that are expected

to be the most affected by climate change.

1. Asof 31 December 2024.
2. Gross monetary amount paid in support of communities
and projects, including Sponsorship & Donation.

84
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@ Governance

CEO and top management remuneration saw +1 500

a 20% weighting of long-term performance cmleag’ues e
related to ESG business, DE&I and climate part of Culture Network
risk priorities. Furthermore, a relevant link

to Group’s Values and Culture — “Winning. +1 ’OOO

The Right Way. Together” goal — is also

part of the short-term scorecard.™

Active members in our
Employee Networks

In 2024:

> 7 Culture Roadshows were held reaching 3,000
colleagues across the Group’s Countries

> €.20,000 colleagues joined Annual Culture Day
Group-wide

> In the context of our well-being framework:
> 365 initiatives mapped across the Group

> €.40 internal trainers trained to deliver
dedicated workshops

> Dedicated courses and an interactive guide
with practical tips and suggestions are
available to every employee in our Group

1. 20% of our CEQ’s short-term scorecard.

Strengthening internal processes

> Raised ESG awareness through dedicated
training sessions and our second ESG Day

> Over 1,000 active members in our Employee
Networks, focused on various diversity traits
across the Group

> Significant share of women in our governing
bodies and leadership teams (as of 4Q24):

> 50% Board of Directors
> 50% Group Executive Committee
> 34% Leadership Team

> Strong international presence (as of 4Q24
36% BoD, 67% GEC, 38% Leadership Team).

and collaboration for our CSRD aligned reporting

Transitioning to Corporate Sustainability Reporting
Directive (CSRD) compliant reporting required a significant
enhancement of our internal systems, processes, and
capabilities. In 2023, a joint ESG and CFO working group

analysed requirements and created a 2024 adaptation plan.

We invested in enhanced data collection, analysis, and
reporting, leveraging automation for efficiency and risk
reduction. Extensive cross-functional collaboration,

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

including senior management oversight, ensured accurate
identification and reporting of key Sustainability topics.
Close alignment with local legal entities across our
operating countries guaranteed consistent compliance.

This commitment underscores our dedication to Sustainability,
transparency, and accountability, establishing a strong
foundation for continuous improvement.
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ESG Review continued

Going forward: evolving our ESG Strategy

UniCredit’s evolving ESG Strategy supports our
Purpose of Empowering Communities to Progress

It is based on strong fundamentals and a set of
interrelated elements to deliver value. Guided by
our Principles, we implement key enablers required
to support strategic levers, which in turn allow us to
achieve the ESG goals underlying our ambition. This
interconnected framework ensures alignment and
cohesion across all ESG initiatives, maximising

our impact.

e Read more on each element of our ESG Strategy,
in section “SBM-1 Strategy, business model and
value chain” of our Sustainability Statements

Our Principles-based approach, aligns with our Group
Values and quides our actions, enabling us to embed
Sustainability in everything we do. It also allows us

to continuously adapt our ESG Strategy to a changing
external environment, address regulatory expectations,

rising geopolitical tensions and evolving customer needs.

In this context, we have evolved our ESG stratedic
framework to ensure it includes all key enablers and
levers needed to effectively support our communities.
The key changes are:

Goals
> Updated ESG business targets with a focus on ESG
penetration for transparent performance tracking

> Integrated Net Zero emissions targets into ESG doals.

Our ESG penetration targets

We updated our ESG penetration targets
on total business volumes for 2025-2027

15% 1b%

ESG lending Sustainable bonds

50%

1. Based on Art. 8 and 9 SFDR regulation.

86

ESG investment products?

Levers
> Broadened social focus to address new
challenges like an ageing population.

e Read more in the dedicated section
Strengthening Our Social Focus

> Elevated Net Zero from commitment
to action to support clients’ transition

> Expanded focus beyond climate to assess
nature-related risks and opportunities

> Prioritised transparency to inform stakeholders
and mitigate green and social washing risk.

Enablers
> Enhanced client offerings with ESG-related
products to support their transition

> Lean governance to embed Sustainability
efficiently across roles

> Dedicated ESG risk framework to
bolster strategic levers

> Leveraded ordanisational Culture to endage
employees in ESG implementation.
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Leading by example
Fulfilling our Purpose of Empowering
Communities to Progress.

Evolving in step with redulation and market forces
ESG penetration targets allowing for a more transparent and
meaningful view on our ESG performance while also aligning
our lending portfolio with Net Zero emissions by 2050.

Levers

Championing Social Beyond Climate
Backing our communities, Weighing and evaluating natural
our people and our wider society. capital risks and opportunities.

Enhanced Client Support Evidencing Accountability
Leveraging Net Zero Strateqy Providing transparency in disclosure
and Transition Plan. and impact assessment.

Enablers

Enriched Client Offering Robust Framework
Expanding and diversifying Effective and enhanced monitoring of our ESG risk

our ESG business portfolio. and lending portfolio.
Lean Governance Empowered Culture
Clear ESG roles and responsibilities, Common Vision, Strategy, and Principles to

embedding agency and ownership. Win. The Right Way. Together.

Our Principles guide our ESG Strategy,
in line with our Group Values.
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ESG Review continued

Strendthening our Social Focus

We are adapting our social strategy to reinforce our efforts on youth,
education and on a just and fair transition, while exploring new emerging
social topics like health — an increasingly important issue in the context
of an aging population

The evolving strategy includes fulfilling our social financial inclusion, and expanding our Skills for

role through social finance with projects supporting Transition programme. We will support our people

youth and balancing environmental and social risks. by fostering a learning culture, building an inclusive
and diverse workplace and ensuring well-being and

We are also exploring how we can best support our
communities in addressing emerging social challenges,
such as health. We continue to support our communities
through social contributions, focusing on education,

quality of life.

@ Read more about our Skills for Transition programme here

S
e

=
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§

=
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Double Materiality
Analysis

Our stratedic approach
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Every vear, we conduct a materiality analysis to identify key
stakeholder issues, including business impacts, risks, and
opportunities (IROs) across ESG matters
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In 2024, we performed our first Double Materiality Analysis (DMA), considering
both impact and financial materiality to gain a comprehensive ESG perspective.

1Joday paieprjosuo)
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Double
materiality
process

2024 results
and progress
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Methodology Way forward
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ESG Review continued
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Double materiality process
As part of the EU Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive (CSRD), our double materiality
process integrates into UniCredit Group’s due diligence system.

> Impact materiality assesses a business’s potential or actual impacts on people and the
environment, considering severity and likelihood

> Financial materiality evaluates risks and opportunities affecting economic performance.

Methodology

For our 2024 DMA, we:

> Engaged internal and external stakeholders to identify material topics
> Assessed materiality through top management and Group Risk Management
> Informed the Board and finalised key issues

e Read more about our methodology in section ESRS 2 General information
of our Sustainability Statements

2024 results and progress

Our DMA identified material impacts, risks, and opportunities, strengthening financial
oversight. The Group Executive Committee plays an active role, and findings will
guide policy and tardet improvements.

e Read more about our List of Material IROs in section SBM-3 — Material impacts, risks and opportunities
and their interaction with Strategy and business model of our Sustainability Statements.

Way forward

We are refining our governance framework to align with CSRD requirements,
ensuring Sustainability is fully integrated into strategic oversight.
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About our

Sustainability
Statements

This year, we present our Sustainability Statements,
which we have prepared in alignment with the new
Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive (CSRD)

The CSRD introduces a new era of Sustainability
reporting, emphasising greater transparency,
standardisation and accountability in how
organisations report on their environmental,
social and governance (ESG) performance

and impacts.

In previous years, we used the Global Reporting
Initiative (GRI) standards to disclose our material
topics in our Integrated Report. In 2024, we have
made significant efforts to ensure our Sustainability
Statements comply fully with CSRD requirements,

in particular their emphasis on double materiality.
We have undertaken an extensive double materiality
assessment to identify the most pressing ESG issues
relevant to our business and stakeholders. This process
included aligning with the European Sustainability
Reporting Standards (ESRS), which serve as the
foundational framework for the CSRD.

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts

Additionally, we have incorporated quantitative
performance metrics, detailed qualitative narratives
and forward-looking commitments, enabling readers
to gain a deeper appreciation of our progress,
challenges and ambitions.

As a result of this new section, UniCredit will no
longer publish a separate Integrated Report.

While meeting CSRD requirements is a requlatory
necessity, we view this as a broader opportunity

to drive value creation for all stakeholders, build
trust, enhance our reputation and strengthen our
position as a responsible and forward-thinking
organisation. Furthermore, the CSRD framework
provides us with a roadmap to assess and mitigate
risks related to critical ESG challenges, ensuring
that we remain resilient and competitive in an
evolving global landscape.

Q Read more on the actions, impacts and aspirations
set out in these Statements as we advance toward
a more sustainable tomorrow.
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See our microsite for more
information on how we have
progressed adainst our
UniCredit Unlocked plan
across our key focus areas
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Preliminary notes

UniCredit prepares a single document called “Annual report and accounts” replacing the two documents relating to the UniCredit group consolidated
financial statements and the UniCredit S.p.A. company financial statements.

The integration of the contents of the two financial statements documents into a single one leads to the elimination of duplications of the qualitative
information presented in both files and, in order to facilitate the reading, the adoption of a system of cross-references between the chapters
dedicated to the consolidated financial statements and the company ones; pursuant to these references the contents of the each referenced
paragraph is entirely reported in the paragraph containing the reference.

The chapter “Incorporations of qualitative information by reference” reports the list of the references.

General aspects

The UniCredit group’s Consolidated financial statements and UniCredit S.p.A. financial statements as at 31 December 2023 were drafted in
accordance with the IAS/IFRS international accounting standards, in compliance with the instructions of Banca d'ltalia with the Circular 262 of 22
December 2005 (and subsequent amendments). These instructions define binding requirements for the related fulfilling methods as well as
regarding the minimal contents of the Notes to the accounts.

In accordance with the (EU) directive 2022/2464, Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive (CSRD), starting from 31 December 2024 the
Sustainability statements are part of the Consolidated report on operations.

The Consolidated financial statements are made up of the Balance sheet, the Income statement, the Statement of Other comprehensive income, the
Statement of changes in Shareholders’ Equity, the Cash flow statement, the Notes to the accounts, as well as the Report on operations, the
economic results achieved, the Group’s financial situation and Annexes.

A section dedicated to Corporate Governance is also included within the document.

The Consolidated financial statements include:

o the Consolidated financial statements certification;

o the Sustainability statements certification;

o the Auditor's Report on the Consolidated financial statements;
o the Auditor's Report on Sustainability statements.

UniCredit S.p.A. financial statements are made up of the Balance sheet, the Income statement, the Statement of other comprehensive income, the
Statement of changes in Shareholder’s Equity, the Cash flow statement, the Notes to the accounts as well as the Report on operation, the economic
results achieved, the Bank's financial situation and Annexes.

UniCredit S.p.A. financial statements include:

o the Annual financial statements certification;

o the Report of the Audit Committee’;

o the Auditor's Report on the Separate financial statements.

UniCredit's group website also contains the press releases concerning the main events of the period and the market presentation of Group results.

1 Starting from 12 April 2024, UniCredit has adopted the one-tier corporate governance system based on the existence of a Board of Directors, which is in charge of the strategic supervision and management of the
Company, and of an Audit Committee, established within the Board itself, performing specific control functions, both appointed by the Shareholders’ Meeting.
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Consolidated report on operations

Introduction and Group highlights

wv
5
3
Introduction to the Consolidated report on operations of UniCredit group g
The Consolidated report on operations illustrates the performance of UniCredit group and the related amounts and results. It includes financial 2
information such as Group highlights, Reclassified Consolidated accounts and their Quarterly figures, Summary results by business segment, Group
and UniCredit share historical data series as well as comments on “Group results”.
To further illustrate the results of the period, the Consolidated report on operations includes Reclassified Consolidated accounts prepared using the 5
same criteria of previous quarterly reports. é
The information included in this report is supported, in order to provide further information about the performance achieved by the Group, by some '5;‘?
Alternative Performance Indicators (API) such as: Cost/Income ratio, Economic Value Added (EVA), Return On Tangible Equity (RoTE), Net bad 2
loans to customers/Loans to customers, Net non-performing loans to customers/Loans to customers, Absorbed capital, Return On Allocated Capital
(ROAC), Return On Assets (ROA), Cost of risk.
Although some of this information, including certain APIs, is neither extracted nor directly reconciled with the Consolidated financial statements, in -
the Consolidated report on operations, the Annexes and the Glossary provide explanatory descriptions of the contents and, in case, the calculation &
methods used, in accordance with European Securities and Markets Authority Guidelines (ESMA/2015/1415) of 5 October 2015. r<’n°
In particular in the Annex 1 is included the reconciliation between the reclassified accounts and the mandatory reporting schedule, as required by g

Consob Notice No.6064293 of 28 July 2006.

The amounts related to year 2023 Reclassified consolidated income statement and to Profitability ratios differ from the ones published at that time.
For further details refer to “Reconciliation principles followed for the Reclassified consolidated income statement”.

For information on relations and transactions with related-party, it shall be referred to the Notes to the consolidated accounts, Part H - Related-party
transactions.

For a complete description of risks and uncertainties that the Group has to face in the current market situation, it shall be referred to the specific
paragraph of this Consolidated report on operations and to the Notes to the consolidated accounts, Part E - Information on risks and related hedging
policies and paragraph “Risks and uncertainty relating to the use of estimates”, Part A - Accounting policies, A.1 - General, Section 2 - General
preparation criteria
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Group highlights, alternative performance indicators and other measures 3
2
Income statement figures g’
(€ million) S
YEAR
2024 2023 % CHANGE
Revenue 24,844 23,826 +4.3% °
of which: =
- Net interest 14,358 14,005 +2.5% 2
- Dividends 470 459 +2.4%
- Fees 8,139 7,565 +7.6%
Operating costs (9,405) (9,460) -0.6%
Gross operating profit (loss) 15,439 14,366 +7.5%
Loan Loss Provisions (LLPs) (641) (560) +14.4%
Net operating profit (loss) 14,798 13,806 +7.2%
Profit (Loss) before tax 12,860 11,451 +12.3%
Group stated net profit (loss) 9,719 9,507 +2.2%

The figures in this table refer to the Reclassified consolidated income statement.
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Balance sheet figures

(€ million)
AMOUNTS AS AT
31.12.2024 31.12.2023 % CHANGE
Total assets 784,004 784,974 -0.1%
Financial assets held for trading 55,083 57,274 -3.8%
Loans to customers 418,378 429,452 -2.6%
Financial liabilities held for trading 31,349 38,022 -17.6%
Deposits from customers and debt securities issued 590,213 585,561 +0.8%
of which: -
- deposits from customers 499,505 495,716 +0.8%
- debt securities issued 90,709 89,845 +1.0%
Group shareholders' equity 62,441 64,079 -2.6%
The figures in the table above refer to the reclassified consolidated balance sheet.
Profitability ratios
YEAR
2024 2023 CHANGE
EPS (€) 5.841 5.105 0.736
Cost/Income ratio 37.9% 39.7% -1.8%
EVA (€ million) 4,800 4,157 643
RoTE 17.7% 16.6% +1.1%
ROA 1.2% 1.2% +0.0%
Notes:
EPS: Earnings Per Share. For further details refer to the Notes to the consolidated accounts, Part C - Consolidated income statement - Section 25 Earning per shares.
Risk ratios
AS AT
31.12.2024 31.12.2023 % CHANGE
Net bad loans to customers/Loans to customers 0.23% 0.18% 0.05%
Net non-performing loans to customers/Loans to customers 1.44% 1.44% 0.01%

For the amounts, refer to the table “Loans to customers - Asset quality” reported in the paragraph “Net write-downs on loans and provisions for
guarantees and commitments” of this Consolidated report on operations of the UniCredit group.
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2
]
T
(=%
Staff and Branches 2
m
AS AT %.
31.12.2024 31.12.2023 CHANGE 2
Number of employees 69,722 70,752 -1,030
Number of branches 3,039 3,082 43
of which: T
- ltaly 1,943 1,950 -7 2
0
- Other countries 1,096 1,132 -36 v
£l
Notes: <.
Number of employees counted for the rate of presence (FTEs - Full Time Equivalent). g
Number of branches includes only Retail branches.
Group transitional capital ratios
AS AT 3
DESCRIPTION 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 CHANGE S
Total Own Funds (€ million) 56,554 59,472 (2,918) =
Total RWEA (€ million) 277,093 284,548 (7,454) =
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital ratio 15.96% 16.14% -0.18%
Total Capital ratio 20.41% 20.90% -0.49%
g
Notes: E
Transitional own funds and capital ratios including all transitional adjustments according to the yearly applicable percentages. =3
Furthermore, starting from 30 June 2020, UniCredit group has decided to apply the IFRS9 transitional approach as reported in article 473a of the Regulation (UE) No.873/2020 that amends the Regulation (EU) No.575/2013 o
and Regulation (EU) No.876/2019. Therefore the values here reported reflect the impact of the transitional arrangements provisioned in such Regulation. Q
]
Q
For further details refer to the paragraph "Capital and value management - Capital ratios" of this Consolidated report on operations. _.E’
o
Ratings =
SHORT-TERM MEDIUM AND STANDALONE
DEBT LONG-TERM OUTLOOK RATING -
Fitch Ratings F2 BBB+ positive bbb+ %
Moody's Investors Service P-2 Baa1 stable baa3 IS
Standard & Poor's A-2 BBB stable bbb+ 2
§
Ratings updated as at 31 January 2025. =
o
5
@

UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts 105



Consolidated report on operations

Reclassified consolidated accounts

Changes occurred in the scope of consolidation

During 2024, with reference to the consolidation perimeter, the following changes were recorded:

 the number of fully consolidated companies, including those ones classified as non-current assets and asset disposal groups based on the
accounting principle IFRS5, decreases overall for 13 (4 in and 17 out) changing from 325, as at 31 December 2023, to 312 as at 31 December
2024;

« the number of companies consolidated by using the equity method, including those ones classified as non-current assets and asset disposal
groups, presents a decrease of 3 (3 out) changing from 27, as at 31 December 2023, to 24 as at 31 December 2024.

For additional information, reference is made in Notes to the consolidated accounts, Part A - Accounting Policies, A.1 - General, Section 3 -
Consolidation scope and methods and in Part B - Consolidated balance sheet - Assets, Section 7 - Equity investments - Item 70.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale

As at 31 December 2024, the main assets which, based on the application of IFRS5 accounting standard, were reclassified as non-current assets
and asset disposal groups, regard the following individual assets and liabilities held for sale and groups of assets held for sale and associated
liabiliies which do not satisfy IFRS5 requirements for the classification as discontinued operations:

o the associated company Risanamento S.p.A. and the controlled companies Weicker S.A.R.L. and Monnet 8 - 10 SAR.L,;

o the loans included in some sale’s initiatives of portfolios;

o the real estate properties held by certain companies in the Group.

For additional information, reference is made in Notes to the consolidated accounts, Part B - Consolidated balance sheet - Assets, Section 12 - Non-
current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale - Item 120 (Assets) and Item 70 (Liabilities).

Reconciliation principles followed for the reclassified consolidated balance sheet

The main reclassifications, whose amounts are provided analytically in the tables enclosed with this report, involve:

o the inclusion in “Loans to banks” of item “Financial assets at amortised cost: a) loans and advances to banks”, net of debt securities reclassified in
“Other financial assets”, and of loans related to item “Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: c) other financial assets mandatorily at fair
value”;

o the inclusion in “Loans to customers” of item “Financial assets at amortised cost: b) Loans and advances to customers”, net of debt securities and
of IFRS16 leasing assets reclassified in “Other financial assets”, and of loans related to item “Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: c)
other financial assets mandatorily at fair value”;

o the aggregation as “Other financial assets” of items (i) “Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: b) financial assets designated at fair
value and c) other financial assets mandatorily at fair value”, net of loans reclassified in “Loans to banks and to customers”, of (ii) “Financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income”, of (iii) “Equity investments”, besides reclassifications of (iv) debt securities from item “Financial
assets at amortised cost: a) loans and advances to banks and b) loans and advances to customers” and of (v) IFRS16 leasing assets from item
“Financial assets at amortised cost: a) loans and advances to banks and b) loans and advances to customers”;

o the inclusion in “Other financial liabilities” of leasing liabilities pursuant to accounting standard IFRS16 relating to item “Financial liabilities at
amortised cost: a) deposits from banks and b) deposits from customers”;

 grouping under “Hedging instruments”, both assets and liabilities, of items “Hedging derivatives” and “Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged
items” in the assets and “Value adjustment of hedged financial liabilities” in the liabilities;

o the inclusion of items “Provision for employee severance pay” and “Provisions for risks and charges” under “Other liabilities”.
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A
=y
&
Reclassified consolidated balance sheet %
(€ million) =
AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGE 2
ASSETS 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 AMOUNT %
Cash and cash balances 41,442 61,000 - 19,558 -32.1%
Financial assets held for trading 55,083 57,274 -2,191 -3.8% )
Loans to banks 50,678 39,434 +11,244 +28.5% g
Loans to customers 418,378 429,452 - 11,074 -2.6% QQ_,
Other financial assets 183,118 162,953 + 20,165 +12.4% =
Hedging instruments (351) (1,340 +989 -73.8% é
Property, plant and equipment 8,794 8,628 + 166 +1.9%
Goodwill 38 - +38 -
Other intangible assets 2,191 2,272 -81 -3.6% -
Tax assets 10,273 11,818 - 1,545 -13.1% A
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for z
sale 3% 370 +24 +6.6% =
Other assets 13,966 13,112 + 854 +6.5% 2
Total assets 784,004 784,974 -970 -0.1%
(€ million) g
AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGE é
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 AMOUNT % g
Deposits from banks 67,903 71,042 -3,139 -4.4% a
Deposits from customers 499,505 495,716 +3,788 +0.8% _E’
Debt securities issued 90,709 89,845 + 864 +1.0% g
Financial liabilities held for trading 31,349 38,022 -6,673 -17.6%
Other financial liabilities 15,228 13,751 + 1477 +10.7%
Hedging instruments (8,134) (10,573) +2,439 -23.1% -
Tax liabilities 1,708 1,483 +226 +15.2% %
Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for sale 0 (0) +0 n.m. §
Other liabilities 22,895 21,445 +1,451 +6.8% 5
Minorities 400 164 +235 n.m. '§
Group shareholders' equity 62,441 64,079 - 1,637 -2.6% -
of which:
- capital and reserves 52,722 54,572 - 1,850 -3.4%
- Group stated net profit (loss) 9,719 9,507 +212 +2.2% o
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 784,004 784,974 -970 -0.1% rf
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Reclassified consolidated balance sheet - Quarterly figures

(€ million)
AMOUNTS AS AT AMOUNTS AS AT
ASSETS 31.12.2024 30.09.2024 30.06.2024 31.03.2024 31.12.2023 30.09.2023 30.06.2023 31.03.2023
Cash and cash balances 41,442 38,425 50,029 65,433 61,000 87,357 76,069 126,377
Financial assets held for trading 55,083 58,286 55,674 55472 57,274 62,938 66,942 62,293
Loans to banks 50,678 61,221 54,447 53,205 39,434 54,309 66,895 71,905
Loans to customers 418,378 430,941 433,997 434,834 429,452 436,512 450,846 453,754
Other financial assets 183,118 180,569 171,620 167,130 162,953 152,793 150,468 148,239
Hedging instruments (351) (946) (2,387) (1,425) (1,340) (3,711) (3,334) (3,679)
Property, plant and equipment 8,794 8,818 8,958 9,151 8,628 8,849 8,936 9,095
Goodwill 38 - (0) - - (0) (0) (0)
Other intangible assets 2,191 2,157 2,194 2,210 2,272 2,230 2,255 2,300
Tax assets 10,273 9,929 10,470 11,068 11,818 11,337 12,003 12,560
Non-current assets and disposal groups
classified as held for sale 394 471 610 356 370 1,198 1,410 1,126
Other assets 13,966 13,638 13,313 13,145 13,112 11,832 11,016 11,357
Total assets 784,004 803,509 798,925 810,578 784,974 825,644 843,506 895,327
(€ million)
AMOUNTS AS AT AMOUNTS AS AT
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 31.12.2024 30.09.2024 30.06.2024 31.03.2024 31.12.2023 30.09.2023 30.06.2023 31.03.2023
Deposits from banks 67,903 86,971 82,916 87,099 71,042 96,928 97,781 148,933
Deposits from customers 499,505 493,506 499,492 502,120 495,716 510,626 514,138 522,514
Debt securities issued 90,709 90,116 91,656 90,942 89,845 92,551 92,987 88,980
Financial liabilities held for trading 31,349 36,185 36,858 38,277 38,022 44,162 50,769 50,061
Other financial liabilities 15,228 15,480 15,039 14,332 13,751 13,005 12,983 12,705
Hedging instruments (8,134) (8,711) (13,114) (11,782) (10,573) (17,316) (17,343) (17,240)
Tax liabilities 1,708 2,050 1,778 1,748 1,483 1,698 1,773 1,804
Liabilities included in disposal groups
classified as held for sale 0 0 0 - (0) 500 524 490
Other liabilities 22,895 24,055 22,128 22,250 21,445 20,608 27,865 23,276
Minorities 400 166 158 172 164 157 148 163
Group shareholders' equity 62,441 63,691 62,013 65,420 64,079 62,726 61,881 63,641
of which:
- capital and reserves 52,722 55,941 56,777 62,862 54,572 56,030 57,507 61,577
- Group stated net profit (loss) 9,719 7,750 5,236 2,558 9,507 6,696 4,374 2,064
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 784,004 803,509 798,925 810,578 784,974 825,644 843,506 895,327
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Reconciliation principles followed for the reclassified consolidated income statement

The main reclassifications, whose amounts are provided analytically in the tables enclosed with this report, involve:

o the inclusion in the “Net interest” of (i) the interest component of the DBO (Defined Benefit Obligation), TFR (Trattamento di Fine Rapporto) and
Jubilee deriving from “Staff costs”, (ii) the costs of issued Credit Linked notes guaranteeing the performance of Loan portfolios from item “Net fees
and commissions” (ii) interest component on derivatives related to the economical hedging on banking book positions from item “Net gains
(losses) on trading”;

o the inclusion in “Dividends” of “Profit (Loss) of equity investments valued at equity”;

o the inclusion in the “Fees” (i) of the structuring and mandate fees on certificates and the connected derivatives, issued or placed by the Group and
(ii) of Mark-up fees on client hedging activities;

o the inclusion among “Trading income” (i) of the net gains (losses) on trading, (ii) of the net gains (losses) on hedge accounting, (iii) of the net
gains/losses on other financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, (iv) of the gains/losses on disposal or repurchase of financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, (v) of gains/losses on disposal and repurchase of financial assets at amortised cost
represented by debt securities, (vi) of gains/losses on disposal and repurchase of financial liabilities at amortised cost, (vii) of the interest income
and expenses deriving from Trading Book instruments, (viii) of the gain/losses on commodities held with a trading intent from “Other operating
expenses/income”, (ix) dividends from held for trading equity instruments and (x) dividends on equity investments, shares and equity instruments
mandatorily at fair value;

o the inclusion in the “Other expenses/income” of (i) “Other operating expenses/income”, excluding recovery of expenses not related to credit card
distribution agreement, (ii) result of industrial companies, (iii) gains/losses on disposal and repurchase of financial assets at amortised cost
represented by performing loans, (iv) net value adjustments/write-backs of tangible in operating lease assets;

o the inclusion in the “Non HR costs” (i) of tax recovery reclassified from “Other operating expenses/income” (ii) the costs for net value adjustments
on leasehold improvements from “Other operating expenses/income” and (iii) the component of discount associated with the accrual of the right to
require specific services recognized in the context of agreements for credit card distribution and payment services from “Net fees and
commissions”;

o the presentation under its own item of “Recovery of expenses” different than the tax recovery and not related to credit card distribution agreement
from “Other operating expenses/income”;

e in “Loan Loss Provisions”, the inclusion (i) of net losses/recoveries on financial assets at amortised cost and at fair value through other
comprehensive income net of debt securities, (ii) of the gains (losses) on disposal and repurchase of financial assets at amortised cost net of debt
securities and of performing loans, (iii) of the net provisions for risks and charges related to commitments and financial guarantees given, (iv) of
credit recovery expenses for the variable portion of the outsourced NPE recovery costs not recovered from the clients and charged to the bank
based on the recovered volumes, reclassified from item “Other administrative expenses”;

o the inclusion in the “Other charges and provisions” of contributions to the resolution funds (SRF), the deposit guarantee schemes (DGS), the Bank
Levy, the life insurance Guarantee Fund and the Guarantee fees for DTA reclassified from item “Other administrative expenses”;

o the inclusion in the “Integration costs” of impact relating to the reorganization operations of “Other expenses/income”, “HR costs”, “Non HR costs”,
“Amortisations and depreciations” and “Other charges and provisions”;

o the inclusion in “Net income from investments” of (i) net losses/recoveries on financial assets at amortised cost and at fair value through other
comprehensive income - debt securities, (i) gains (losses) on tangible and intangible assets measured at fair value, (iii) gains (losses) of equity
investments and on disposal on investments, including impacts from evaluation arising from IFRS5 non-current assets and disposal groups related
to equity investment consolidated line by line and at net equity method not presented to item “Profit (Loss) after tax from discontinued operations”,
(iv) net Result on Financial Assets mandatorily at fair value related to debt securities referred to non-performing loans (included securitizations), (v)
inventories assets (IAS2) obtained from recovery procedures of NPE and (vi) impairment/write backs of rights of use of land and buildings used in
the business.

Figures of Reclassified consolidated income statement relating to 2023 have been restated, starting from March 2024, with the effects of the:

e extension of shift from Trading Income to Fees of the client hedging mark-up for some additional derivatives non-linear product: Equity derivatives,
FX derivatives and prepaid forward carbon trades;

o shift from Non HR Costs to Loan Loss Provisions of Credit recovery expenses for the variable portion of the outsourced NPE recovery costs not
recovered from the clients and charged to the bank based on the recovered volumes;

« shift from Other charges and provision to Other expenses/income of amounts related to asset management distribution agreements.

Figures of Reclassified consolidated income statement have been restated starting from June 2024, with reference to 2023 and first quarter 2024,

for the reclassification of “Tax Recovery” from Recovery of expenses to Non HR Costs.
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Reclassified consolidated accounts

Reclassified consolidated income statement

(€ million)
YEAR CHANGE
% AT CONSTANT
2024 2023 P&L % FX(*) RATES
Net interest 14,358 14,005 + 353 +2.5% +3.5%
Dividends 470 459 +11 +2.4% +2.4%
Fees 8,139 7,565 +573 +7.6% +8.2%
Trading income 1,739 1,743 -4 -0.2% +3.1%
Other expenses/income 139 54 +84 n.m. n.m.
Revenue 24,844 23,826 +1,018 +4.3% +5.3%
HR costs (5,853) (5,861) +8 -0.1% +0.2%
Non HR costs (2,596) (2,603) +7 -0.3% +0.3%
Recovery of expenses 106 81 +24 +29.7% +29.8%
Amortisations and depreciations (1,062) (1,078) +16 -1.5% -0.9%
Operating costs (9,405) (9,460) +55 -0.6% -0.1%
GROSS OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 15,439 14,366 +1,073 +7.5% +8.8%
Loan Loss Provisions (LLPs) (641) (560) - 81 +14.4% +5.3%
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 14,798 13,806 +992 +7.2% +9.0%
Other charges and provisions (1,069) (1,023) -45 +4.4% +18.7%
of which: systemic charges (515) (955) +440 -46.1% -45.7%
Integration costs (841) (1,060) +219 -20.7% - 19.6%
Net income from investments (29) (272) +243 - 89.4% -94.9%
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 12,860 11,451 +1,409 +12.3% +13.1%
Income taxes (3,085) (1,914) -1.172 +61.2% +61.2%
Profit (Loss) of discontinued operations - - - - n.m.
NET PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 9,775 9,537 +237 +2.5% +3.4%
Minorities (55) (27) -29 n.m. n.m.
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
GROUP BEFORE PPA 9,719 9,510 +209 +2.2% +3.2%
Purchase Price Allocation (PPA) - (4) +4 -100.0% -100.0%
Goodwill impairment - - - - n.m.
GROUP STATED NET PROFIT (LOSS) 9,719 9,507 +212 +2.2% +3.2%

Note:
(*) Foreign Exchange.
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w
;::
3
Reclassified consolidated income statement - Quarterly figures %
<
(€ million) z
2024 2023
Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1
Net interest 3,652 3,564 3,565 3,578 3,610 3,600 3,497 3,298
Dividends 93 151 118 108 93 113 129 124 5
Fees 1,975 1,943 2,120 2,100 1,814 1,790 1,928 2,033 2.
Trading income 270 441 470 558 339 478 462 463 :T;
Other expenses/income 13 43 56 27 105 (14) (48) 11 2
Revenue 6,002 6,142 6,328 6,371 5,962 5,967 5,967 5,930 2
HR costs (1,572) (1,427) (1,424) (1,429) (1,576) (1,437) (1,426) (1,422)
Non HR costs (694) (622) (649) (632) (695) (637) (641) (631)
Recovery of expenses 28 19 36 23 30 20 16 16 o
Amortisations and depreciations (272) (261) (260) (268) (237) (270) (286) (284) 2
Operating costs (2,510) (2,292) (2,298) (2,306) (2,478) (2,324) (2,337) (2,322) 2
GROSS OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 3,492 3,851 4,031 4,065 3,484 3,643 3,630 3,608 2
Loan Loss Provisions (LLPs) (357) (165) (15) (103) (311) (139) (12) (98)
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 3,135 3,686 4,016 3,962 3,173 3,505 3,619 3,510
Other charges and provisions (385) (109) (228) (346) 99 (285) (92) (745) o
of which: systemic charges (40) (70) (45) (360) (35) (232) (48) (640) =
Integration costs (753) (34) (35) (18) (788) (41) (214) (17) %
Net income from investments 13 (19) (24) 1 (134) (11) (109) (17) %
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 2,010 3,523 3,728 3,599 2,349 3,168 3,204 2,731 ;
Income taxes ) (1,003) (1,043) (1,033) 468 (837) (883) (661) 3
Profit (Loss) of discontinued operations - - - - - - - - S.
NET PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 2,003 2,520 2,685 2,566 2,817 2,331 2,320 2,070
Minorities (34) 7 7 (8) (6) (9) (6) (6)
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO o
THE GROUP BEFORE PPA 1,969 2,513 2,679 2,558 2,810 2,322 2,314 2,064 3
Purchase Price Allocation (PPA) - - - - - (0) 4) - §
Goodwill impairment - - - - - - - - >
GROUP STATED NET PROFIT (LOSS) 1,969 2,513 2,679 2,558 2,810 2,322 2,310 2,064 'éb
o)
3
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Reclassified consolidated income statement - Comparison of Q4 2024/2023

(€ million)
Q4 CHANGE
% AT CONSTANT
2024 2023 P&L % FX(*) RATES
Net interest 3,652 3,610 +41 +1.1% +2.0%
Dividends 93 93 -1 -0.8% -0.8%
Fees 1,975 1,814 +161 +8.9% +9.7%
Trading income 270 339 - 69 -20.5% -15.3%
Other expenses/income 13 105 -92 -87.6% -87.1%
Revenue 6,002 5,962 +40 +0.7% +1.8%
HR costs (1,572) (1,576) +3 -0.2% +0.1%
Non HR costs (694) (695) +1 -0.2% +0.4%
Recovery of expenses 28 30 -1 -4.8% -4.8%
Amortisations and depreciations (272) (237) -35 +14.7% +15.2%
Operating costs (2,510) (2,478) -32 +1.3% +1.7%
GROSS OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 3,492 3,484 +8 +0.2% +1.9%
Loan Loss Provisions (LLPs) (357) (311) -46 +14.8% +6.5%
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 3,135 3,173 -38 -1.2% +1.4%
Other charges and provisions (385) 99 -484 n.m. n.m.
of which: systemic charges (40) (35) -5 +14.6% +15.8%
Integration costs (753) (788) +36 -4.5% -2.9%
Net income from investments 13 (134) +147 n.m. n.m.
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 2,010 2,349 -339 -14.4% -15.4%
Income taxes ) 468 -475 n.m. n.m.
Profit (Loss) of discontinued operations - - - - n.m.
NET PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 2,003 2,817 -814 -28.9% -29.2%
Minorities (34) (6) -27 n.m. n.m.
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
GROUP BEFORE PPA 1,969 2,810 - 841 -29.9% -30.2%
Purchase Price Allocation (PPA) - - - - n.m.
Goodwill impairment - - - - n.m.
GROUP STATED NET PROFIT (LOSS) 1,969 2,810 - 841 -29.9% -30.2%

Note:
(*) Foreign Exchange.
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(%)
—
=
Q
—
(]
(=%
. . (g]
Key figures by business segment ®
<
=
GROUP 2
CENTRAL EASTERN CORPORATE  CONSOLIDATED
ITALY GERMANY EUROPE EUROPE RUSSIA CENTRE( GROUP TOTAL
Income statement
Revenue =
2024 11,354 5,462 4,320 2,872 1,292 (456) 24,844 5
2023 10,904 5417 4,261 2,591 1,185 (532) 23,826 %
Operating costs 8
2024 (3,914) (2,220) (1,604) (905) (226) (537) (9,405) -
2023 (3.917) (2,400) (1,622) (850) (226) (446) (9,460) g
GROSS OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) g
2024 7,440 3,242 2,716 1,967 1,067 (993) 15,439
2023 6,987 3,017 2,639 1,741 959 (978) 14,366
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX
2024 6,173 2,787 2,449 1,834 719 (1,102) 12,860 m
2023 5,612 2119 2,230 1,713 888 (1,110) 11,451 g
el
m
Balance sheet <.
CUSTOMERS LOANS™ g
as at 31 December 2024 144,590 125,773 91,988 40,614 1,192 162 404,319
as at 31 December 2023 152,120 125,107 95,367 33,570 3,152 162 409,478
CUSTOMERS DEPOS(")
as at 31 December 2024 183,922 138,266 96,899 53,338 3,480 (5) 475,900 (=)
as at 31 December 2023 188,434 138,192 93,450 47,104 7,208 (5) 474,383 S
TOTAL RWEA g
as at 31 December 2024 101,083 64,989 58,559 34,710 10,819 6,933 277,093 a
as at 31 December 2023 108,073 69,473 60,492 28,743 14,283 3,484 284,548 g@
Q
EVA f?
2024 2,606 869 918 889 (206) (276) 4,800 b
2023 2,208 698 861 896 108 (614) 4,157 -
Cost/income ratio
2024 34.5% 40.6% 37.1% 31.5% 17.5% n.m. 37.9%
2023 35.9% 44.3% 38.1% 32.8% 19.0% n.m. 39.7% Q
=
©
Q
Employees S
as at 31 December 2024 26,902 8,983 9,844 14,641 2,590 6,762 69,722 ;
as at 31 December 2023 27,528 9,819 10,191 13,019 3,153 7,041 70,752 g
=}
Notes: -
(*) The item "Group Corporate Centre" comprehend Corporate Centre Global Functions, inter-segment adjustments and consolidation adjustments not attributable to individual segments.
(**) The Customer loans and the Customers depos are net of repos, intercompany transactions.
The amounts related to year 2023 differ from the ones published at that time. For further details refer to “Reconciliation principles followed for the Q
Reclassified consolidated income statement”. D

Figures as of 2023 were recast, where necessary, on a like-to-like basis to consider changes in scope of business segment and methodological
rules.

With reference to perimeters of business sectors refer to paragraph “Organisational structure” - Notes to the consolidated accounts, Part L -
Segment reporting.
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Group and UniCredit share historical data series

Group figures 2014 - 2024

IAS/IFRS
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Reclassified income statement (€ million)
Revenue 24,844 23,843 20,343 17,954 17,140 18,839 19,723 19,619 18,801 22,405 22,513
Operating costs (9,405) (9,471) (9,560) (9,797) (9,805) (9,929) (10,698) (11,350) (12,453) (13,618) (13,838)
Gross operating profit (loss) 15,439 14,372 10,782 8,158 7,335 8,910 9,025 8,268 6,348 8,787 8,675
Profit (Loss) before tax 12,860 11,451 7,289 1,236 (1,546) 3,065 3,619 4,148 (10,978) 2,671 4,091
Net profit (loss) for the period 9,775 9,537 6,473 1,570 (1,842) 3,559 4,112 5,790 (11,061) 2,239 2,669
Group stated net profit (loss) 9,719 9,507 6,458 1,540 (2,785) 3,373 3,892 5473 (11,790) 1,694 2,008
Reclassified balance sheet (€ million)
Total assets 784,004 784,974 857,773 916,671 931,456 855,647 831,469 836,790 859,533 860,433 844,217
Loans to customers 418,378 429,452 455,781 437,544 450,550 482,574 471,839 447,721 444,607 473,999 470,569

of which: bad exposures 944 753 601 1,121 1,645 2,956 5787 9,499 10,945 19,924 19,701
Deposits from customers and debt
securities issued 590,213 585,561 594,300 596,402 600,964 566,871 560,141 561,498 567,855 584,268 560,688
Group shareholders’ equity 62,441 64,079 63,339 61,628 59,507 61,416 55,841 59,331 39,336 50,087 49,390
Profitability ratios (%)
Gross operating profit (loss)/Total assets 1.97 1.83 1.26 0.89 0.79 1.04 1.09 0.99 0.74 1.02 1.03
Cost/Income ratio 37.9 39.7 47.0 54.6 57.2 52.7 54.2 57.9 66.2 60.8 61.5

The figures here reported refer to the information published in the reference year.

114 UniCredit 2024 Annual Report and Accounts



Consolidated report on operations

Group and UniCredit share historical data series

Share information

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Share price (€)
- maximum 42.840 25.565 15.850 13.576 14.174 13.494 18.212 18.350 25.733 32.824 34.427
- minimum 24.850 13.446 8.021 7420 6.213 9.190 9.596 12.160 8.785 24.605 25.583
- average 35.166 20.463 11.087 10.088 8.650 11.193 14.635 15.801 13.820 29.509 30.015
- end of period 38.525 24.565 13.272 13.544 7.648 13.020 9.894 15.580 13.701 25.733 26.735
Number of outstanding shares (million)
- at period end 1,551 1,712 1,935 2,211 2,237 2,233 2,230 2,226 6,180 5,970 5,866
- shares cum dividend 1,542 1,703 1,926 2,201 2,228 2,224 2,220 2,216 6,084 5873 5,769

of which: savings shares E - - - - - 0.25 2.52 2.48 2.45
- average 1,631 1,838 2,079 2,231 2,236 2,233 2,229 1,957 6,110 5,927 5,837
Dividend
- total dividends (€ million) - 3,015 1,875 1,170 268 - 601 726 - 706 697
- dividend per ordinary share - 1.803 0.987 0.538 0.120 - 0.270 0.320 - 0.120 0.120
- dividend per savings share - - - - - - - - - 0.120 1.065
Notes:

Due to extraordinary corporate operations involving the detachment of rights, splitting or grouping of shares, demerger operations as well as distributions of extraordinary dividends, share prices might systematically change
being no longer comparable with each other. The historical series of share prices have been therefore adjusted to restore price continuity.

The number of shares, existing at the end of the reference period, is net of treasury shares and included No.9,675,640 of shares held under a contract of usufruct signed with Mediobanca S.p.A. supporting the issuance of
convertible securities denominated “Cashes”. The shares held under a contract of usufruct are excluded from the shares cum dividend highlighted at the row “shares cum dividend".

With reference to the dividend amount for the year 2024, subject to approval by the Shareholders' Meeting scheduled for 27 March 2025, refer to the paragraph “Capital and value management - Capital ratios” of this
Consolidated report on operations.

It's reported below detailed information concerning shares capital changes and dividends pay-out paid during the year 2024.

On 16 January 2024, the cancellation of N0.72,239,501 treasury shares was carried out without reducing the share capital pursuant to the
resolutions adopted by the Shareholders' Meeting of 31 March and 27 October 2023. The cancellation refers to the total number of treasury shares
held in the portfolio at the end of the 2023 financial year resulting from the purchases made to complete the 2022 Buy-Back Program
(No.14,059,665) and from the purchases made under the "First Tranche of the 2023 Buy-Back Program" from the start date of the program (30
October 2023) to the end of the financial year (N0.58,179,836).

On 16 February 2024, the capital increase of 90 million resolved by the Board of Directors on 4 February 2024 was carried out with the free issue of
No.7,227,514 ordinary shares for the execution of the Group's incentive plans.

On 7 March 2024, the “First Tranche of the 2023 Buy-Back Program” launched on 30 October 2023 was completed with the total purchase of
No0.95,995,258 treasury shares for a total value of €2,500 million equal to the total authorized disbursement. On 26 March 2024, the cancellation of
the additional No.37,815,422 treasury shares purchased in the current financial year to complete the program was ordered.

On 12 April 2024, the Company's Shareholders' Meeting authorized the share buyback program as part of the distributions to shareholders: a first
distribution for a maximum disbursement of €3,085 million to be realized also in several tranches during the 2024 financial year relating to the
residual part of the overall payout for the 2023 financial year (the "2023 SBB Residual") and a second distribution as an advance on the expected
distributions for the 2024 financial year ("2024 SBB Advance") which was defined on the basis of the Company's results for the first half of 2024.
The new remuneration policy defined by the Board of Directors on the occasion of the approval of the 2023 financial year results and disclosed to
the market on 5 February 2024 also provides for the distribution of an interim cash dividend which was paid on 20 November 2024 and whose
amount was defined by the Board of Directors on 23 October 2024.

On 24 April 2024, the cash dividend approved by the Shareholders' Meeting of 12 April 2024 was paid for a total amount of €3,015 million from the
allocation of the 2023 financial year profit, equal to a unit dividend of €1.8029 for each outstanding share entitled on the dividend date.

On 9 May 2024, the execution of the "Second Tranche of the Buy-Back Program 2023" was started for a maximum disbursement of €1,585 million
as part of the amount of the "SBB Residual 2023" approved by the Shareholders' Meeting of 12 April 2024 for a total of €3,085 million and fully
authorized by the ECB. The second tranche of the share purchase program was completed on 20 June 2024 with the purchase of a total of
No.44,859,171 treasury shares, equal to 2.67% of the share capital and for a total value equal to the maximum authorized disbursement (€1,585
million). The purchased shares were cancelled without reduction of the share capital on 26 June 2024 in implementation of the resolution adopted by
the Shareholders' Meeting of 12 April 2024.

On 24 June 2024, the third and final tranche of the share buyback program (the Third Tranche of the 2023 Buy-Back Program) was launched for a
maximum disbursement of €1,500 million, equal to the residual amount of the total payout of €3,085 million approved for the 2023 financial year
(“SBB Residual 2023").
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The third tranche of the share buyback program was completed on 19 August 2024 with the purchase of a total of N0.42,242,975 own shares, equal
to 2.58% of the share capital and for a total value equal to the maximum authorized disbursement (€1,500 million). The purchased shares were
cancelled on 18 December 2024 without reduction of the share capital in implementation of the resolution adopted by the Shareholders' Meeting of
12 April 2024.

On 16 September 2024, the execution of the first part of the advance of the Buy-Back Program 2024 (the SBB advance 2024) was started for a
maximum disbursement of €1,700 million approved by the Shareholders' Meeting of 12 April 2024 and fully authorised by the ECB on 13 September
2024.

The first part of the advance of the Buy-Back Program 2024 was completed on 14 November 2024 with the overall purchase of N0.43,313,675
treasury shares, equal to 2.65% of the share capital for a total value equal to the maximum authorized disbursement (€1,700 million).

The treasury shares in the portfolio at the end of the 2024 financial year have been entirely cancelled.

On 5 November 2024, the Board of Directors, based on the financial situation as at 30 June 2024, resolved to distribute to shareholders an account
dividend to be paid on the results of the 2024 financial year for a total of €1,440 million, equal to a unit dividend of €0.9261 entitled as of 4 November
2024.

The account dividend was paid on 20 November 2024 for a value of €1,366 million, a portion of the shareholders did not choose the advance option
for a value of €62 million, while the shares that the Company repurchased after 4 November and held in the portfolio at the record date are not
entitled to the account dividends, the value of which, equal to €12 million, has been allocated to the statutory reserve.

Earnings ratios

IAS/IFRS

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Shareholders' equity (€ million) 62,441 64,079 63,339 61,628 59,507 61,416 55,841 59,331 39,336 50,087 49,390
Net profit (loss) attributable to the Group (€
million) 9,719 9,507 6,458 1,540 (2,785) 3,373 3,892 5473 (11,790 1,694 2,008
Shareholders' equity per share (€) 40.25 3742 32.73 27.87 26.60 27.50 25.04 26.65 6.36 8.39 842
Price/Book value 0.96 0.66 0.41 0.49 0.29 047 0.40 0.58 0.43 0.61 0.63
Earnings per share (€) 5.841 5.105 3.085 0.680 (1.306) 1.462 1.712 2.79% (1.982) 0.27 0.34
Payout ratio (%) - 317 29.0 76.0 - - 154 133 - 417 347
Dividend yield on average price per
ordinary share (%) - 8.81 8.90 5.33 1.39 - 1.84 2.03 - 2.04 2.00

Notes:
For further details on Earnings per share (EPS) refer to Part C - Section 25 Earnings per share.

The amounts shown in the table are "historical figures" published in different periods and they should be read taking into account the context of the
period at which they refer to.

The net profit for the period used to calculate EPS is reduced for the following amounts related to the cash-out, charged to equity, related to the
usufruct contract signed with Mediobanca S.p.A. on UniCredit shares for supporting the issuance of convertible securities denominated “Cashes”:
€35 million for 2014, €100 million for 2015, €128 million for 2016, €32 million for 2017, €93 million for 2018, €124 million for 2019, €122 million for
2020 and €30 million for 2021, related to the last payment referred to 2019 results, €74 million for 2022, referred to 2021 results, €175 million for
2023, referred to 2022 results, and €247 million for 2024, referred to 2023 results.
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Macroeconomic situation, banking and financial markets

International situation

Global economic activity remained subdued in 2024, expanding at pace like that of the previous year. However, broad stabilization in GDP growth
reflected differences in economic performance across regions: firmer — than - expected GDP growth in the US barely offsetting disappointing growth
in some Asian and European economies. The return of inflation to near central-bank targets led major central banks in advanced economies to
begin cutting policy rates and moving toward a neutral stance in June. In the second half of the year, amid a context of weakening demand, this
reduction in interest rates supported orderly normalization of labor markets.

The Chinese economy continued to disappoint last year as the country’s transition from a closed state-planned economy toward a more open and
market - driven one remains uncomplete. The supply - side performed well thanks to industrial policies aimed at channeling economic resources into
new sectors and away from the real estate sector. However, consumer confidence remained at rock bottom, primarily because Chinese households’
wealth tends to be tied to the value of homes, which has depreciated in recent years. As a result, China’s share of global exports remained above
pre Covid-19 levels in 2024, but a substantial amount of production capacity stood idle due to domestic demand weakness. To address these
challenges, starting from September, Chinese authorities enacted a multi-tiered stimulus package to stoke demand. It included monetary and fiscal
easing measures as well as housing and stock-market support measures. However, evidence indicates that, as the prices of homes and some
goods have been falling, the expectation of lower prices induced consumers to delay purchases, thereby limiting the impact of the measures
announced, at least up to December.

In Japan, GDP contracted mildly last year owing to temporary supply disruptions that weighed on output in the first half of 2024. In the second half of
the year, a recovery in semiconductor-related product markets and the resumption of automobile shipments, following certification test issues,
supported a pickup in exports. The Bank of Japan ended negative interest rates in March and raised its short-term-rate to 0.25% in July as a result
of its views that Japan was on track to sustainably meet the central bank's 2% inflation target.

In the UK, economic growth remained subdued in 2024, with some recovery in the first half of the year, followed by stagnation in the second half.
The first half was marked partly by a recovery from a mild recession in second half of 2023 and partly by a reflection of a fillip from pre-election tax
cuts from the then-ruling Conservative party. The Labor party won a majority in the 4 July 2024 general election and decided to raise taxes (mostly
on businesses) by GBP 40 billion in its Autumn Budget. This affected business confidence, employment, and economic activity.

Economic activity in the eurozone remained trapped in a low-growth environment, as private consumption remained subdued despite positive growth
in real wages, while private investment spending continued to struggle amid weak demand, reduced profitability and still-tight financing conditions.
Uncertainty surrounding geopolitical risk, such as that stemming from Russia’s war against Ukraine and conflict in the Middle East; trade tariffs and
economic policy further contributed to dampening investment, as firms feared disruption to global trade and energy-price increases. Starting in
September, PMIs revealed fresh signs of economic weakness amid a slowdown in services activity from an already-subdued pace and a stronger
contraction in manufacturing due to weak domestic and global demand and the lagged impact from the transmission of higher interest rates.

On another note, the impact of weaker growth on labor markets remained contained. This probably reflected companies’ higher reluctance to let staff
go than in the previous cycles amid unfavorable demographic trends.

A decline in prices for energy, goods and food, which was amplified by base effects, contributed to reducing inflationary pressure in the eurozone,
bringing, albeit temporarily, headline CP! inflation below 2% in September. Disinflationary pressure reflected weaker demand amid tighter monetary
policy, repaired supply chains in global manufacturing and a moderation of demand-supply mismatches in contact-intensive sectors. Underlying
inflation also eased, although stickiness in service-price inflation prevented a major decline - the core rate declined to 2.7% in December. With the
pace of disinflation gaining traction, the European Central Bank (ECB) started to cut its policy rate in June, bringing it to 3% by December, 100bp
below its peak for this cycle.

The recalibration of the terms and conditions of the third series of Targeted Long-Term Refinancing Operations (TLTRO Ill) maintained pressure on
banks to repay outstanding loans, contributing to the draining of excess liquidity from the system. In the second half of 2024, the Eurosystem no
longer reinvested all the principal payments from maturing securities purchased under the pandemic emergency purchase program (PEPP),
targeting a reduction of the PEPP portfolio by €7.5 billion per month on average. The ECB’s Governing Council discontinued reinvestments under
the PEPP at the end of 2024.
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In the US, economic growth last year was more resilient than previously anticipated but moderated towards the end of year. This moderation
reflected a softening of the labor market, the rundown of household savings buffers, subdued consumer confidence, increasing delinquency rates on
consumer credit and still-tight credit conditions. Progress on disinflation quickened, with both headline and core consumer inflation easing, moving
towards 3%. Starting in September, the Fed cut its reference interest rate by a cumulative 100bp, bringing the federal funds rate to 4.25-4.50% by
December. At the Fed's December meeting, the central bank announced it would keep reducing the size of its balance sheet by allowing its asset
holdings to mature up to monthly caps of $25 billion for USTs and $35 billion for mortgage-backed securities.

Banking and financial markets

Lending to the private sector in the eurozone gradually picked up from low levels during 2024 and increased by 2.0% yoy in December, compared to
its broad stabilization towards the end of 2023. Financing conditions remained tight over the year but gradually improved, supporting the first signs of
arecovery in loan demand, despite subdued economic growth and high geopolitical uncertainty. According to the European Central Bank’s bank
lending survey, eurozone banks reported a modest net increase in loan demand from firms in the fourth quarter 2024, while net demand for housing
loans rebounded strongly.

In 2024, growth in loans to the private sector remained weak in the main reference countries of UniCredit group (Austria, Germany and Italy), and
particularly so in in Italy, where lending to non-financial corporations was stuck in negative territory (it contracted by around 2.0% on an annual
basis). Loan demand was still hampered by weak fixed investment. Loans to households showed a gradual recovery, which had broadly stabilised
by the end of 2024, after declining by more than 1% yoy in December 2023. In Germany, loans to the private sector showed modest expansion,
decelerating after they showed 1% yoy growth at the end of 2023, against a backdrop in which the German economy contracted once again in 2024
and in which there was a significant decline in fixed investment. In Austria, corporate loans continued to grow, albeit at a slower pace compared to
2023, while loans to households contracted for most of the year at a pace of about 1.0% yoy, compared to almost -2% at the end of 2023.

With respect to bank funding at a system level, growth in deposits from households and non-financial corporations in the euro area recovered from
their slowdown observed in 2023. The increase in deposits was also supported by a recovery in overnight deposits. This was also the case in Italy,
where the growth rate of deposits from households stopped slowing (compared to 2023), benefiting from improvement in real disposable income and
savings. In Germany, the stock of deposits from both households and non-financial corporations continued to grow at a decent pace, also driven by
a recovery in overnight deposits.

Cuts to the reference rates by the ECB have been gradually transmitted into bank interest rates in the three reference countries of UniCredit group.
Interest rates applied to bank loans to non-financial corporations moved below 5% in Germany and Italy, one percentage point below their peak a
year earlier and their lowest level since April 2023, while they declined to slightly above 4% in Austria. Interest rates applied to loans for house
purchases also moved along a downward trend, declining well below 4% in all the reference countries of the Group. Given broad stabilisation in the
interest rates applied to bank deposits, the bank spreads (i.e. the difference between the average interest rate applied to loans and the average rate
applied to deposits) showed a moderate decline over the course of 2024.

During 2024, market movements reflected a constructive approach by investors, supported by expectations of interest-rate cuts by central banks.
Strong market performance especially characterized the second part of the year despite intensification of geopolitical risks (the latter was also
related to the worsening of the conflict in the Middle East) and expectations regarding the outcome of US elections in November, which was overall
positively welcomed by financial markets. Generally positive results were observed in the bond segment, despite high volatility in medium- and long-
term returns. Credit spreads remained low, and stock markets performed well. The Italian stock market and the German stock market achieved
double-digit gains, respectively up by 19% and 13%, compared to December 2023, while the Austrian stock market showed improvement of around
6%.
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CEE countries

Economic growth in all EU - CEE2 and the Western Balkans picked-up in most countries in 2024, following the significant slowdown in 2023. In EU -
CEE, growth is estimated at 1.8% in 2024, after 0.7% 2023, with some differentiation across countries. We estimate growth was stronger in Croatia,
Slovakia, Poland and Bulgaria, with rates ranging between 2.0% and 3.5%, and weaker in the other countries, with rates ranging from 0.0% and
1.5%. The most open economies such as Czechia and Hungary experienced the lowest growth rates, below 1%, as they were more affected by
weak external demand. In the Western Balkans, Serbia experienced the highest growth in the region, 3.9%, thanks to the strength in domestic
demand, while in Bosnia and Herzegovina it is estimated at 2.3%.

The overall improvement in economic growth in 2024 in EU - CEE and the Western Balkans was in most cases mainly driven by the recovery in
private consumption, which was supported by higher real wage growth, thanks to disinflation and increases in nominal wages. Wages increases
reflected still tight labour markets and, in various countries, significant increases in public sector salaries. Public investment was supported by EU
funds, while private investment was negatively affected by weak external demand and uncertainty. Persisting weak external demand weighed on
exports performance, which affected in particular the manufacturing sector. In Russia growth is estimated at 3.7%.

We expect growth to pick to 2% - 3% in most CEE countries in 2025. Growth will likely be mainly driven by domestic demand. Consumption will be
supported by still-tight labor markets. Public investment will be an important driver of growth, also thanks to the pickup in EU Recovery and
Resilience Facility (RRF) utilization, as well as the acceleration in the absorption of 2021-27 budget funds, which play an important role in CEE.
External demand will likely remain sluggish. There is limited fiscal space to offset external weakness, as governments face fiscal adjustment needs
due to the high fiscal deficits in the region.

Inflation continued to slow in 2024 but, with the exception of Serbia, it remained above the target range in all countries. Disinflation stalled during the
summer as the supportive impact of food prices started to fade. The domestic demand-driven component of inflation has even edged higher in some
countries, especially in those that run loose fiscal balances. The CEE region also experienced the global phenomenon of the growing gap between
decelerating core goods price inflation and still elevated service price inflation. In CEE, this phenomenon has been also driven by the convergence
process of services prices towards EU levels. Moderate disinflation will likely bring the headline figure inside the target range in CEE countries in
2025.

Most CEE central banks reduced the policy rate in 2024. The largest reduction took place in Hungary, where the rate was cut from 10.75% to 6.50%
during 2024, and Czechia, where the reduction was from 6.75% to 4.00%. Less pronounced cuts took place in in Serbia (from 6.50% to 5.75%) and
Romania (from 7.00% to 6.50%). In Russia, the central bank increased the policy rate from 16.00% to 21.00%. Disinflation is slowing, but there is
still room for cautious rate cuts in 2025.

2 Bulgaria, Croatia, Czech Republic, Hungary, Poland, Romania, Slovakia and Slovenia.
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